
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded on tape 

Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Telephone No: 
 

Maria Lipzith 
 
 
 
247 4353 

Principal Scrutiny Adviser: 
Sharon Winfield 
Telephone No:  247 4707 
 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOODS) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in the Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Wednesday, 25th July, 2007 at 10.00 am 

 
A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board  

in a Committee Room at 9.30 am 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
B Anderson - Adel and Wharfedale 

C Beverley - Morley South 

A Blackburn - Farnley and Wortley 

D Coupar - Middleton Park 

Mrs R Feldman - Alwoodley 

A Gabriel - Beeston and Holbeck 

D Hollingsworth - Burmantofts and 
Richmond Hill 

G Hyde - Killingbeck and 
Seacroft 

R Lewis - Pudsey 

A Ogilvie - Beeston and Holbeck 

L Rhodes-Clayton - Hyde Park and 
Woodhouse 

F Robinson - Calverley and 
Farsley 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded.) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 
To identify items where resolutions may be moved 
to exclude the public. 
 

 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for 
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING - 14TH 
JUNE 2007 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
last meeting held on 14th June 2007. 
 
(Minutes attached) 
 
 
   
 

1 - 4 



 

 
C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

7   
 

  MINUTES - EXECUTIVE BOARD - 4TH JULY 
2007 
 
To receive and note the minutes of the Executive 
Board meeting held on 4th July 2007. 
 
(Minutes attached)  
 
 
 

5 - 12 

8   
 

  MINUTES - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE - 4TH JUNE 2007 
 
To receive and note the minutes of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 4th June 
2007. 
 
(Minutes attached) 
 
 
 

13 - 
16 

9   
 

  MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 
To receive a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on the opportunity to raise 
questions and issues with the Executive Board 
Member with responsibility for Neighbourhoods 
and Housing and the Executive Board Member 
with responsibility for Environmental Services, 
together with representatives from the Department 
of Environment and Neighbourhoods. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
 

17 - 
18 

10   
 

  MONITORING OF SCRUTINY BOARD 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To consider a report by the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development  together with the updates 
provided by the Department of Environment and 
Neighbourhoods following the inquiries into Anti 
Social Behaviour and Affordable Housing.  
Members are asked to decide whether further 
scrutiny involvement is required on these inquiries. 
 
(Report attached)  
 

19 - 
48 



 

 
D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

11   
 

  INQUIRY INTO REGENERATION IN BEESTON 
HILL AND HOLBECK - FORMAL RESPONSES 
TO RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To note a report by the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development together with the formal 
responses provided by the Department of 
Environment and Neighbourhoods following the 
inquiry into Regeneration in Beeston Hill and 
Holbeck. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
 
   
 

49 - 
54 

12   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To consider a report by the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on the Board’s current Work 
Programme (Appendix 1) and the Forward Plan of 
Key Decisions for July to October 2007 (Appendix 
2). 
 
(Report attached) 
 
 
 
 

55 - 
64 

13   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Wednesday, 19th September 2007 at 10.00 a.m.  
 
(Pre-Meeting for Board Members at 9.320 a.m.) 
 
 

 

 



SCRUTINY BOARD (ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOODS) 

THURSDAY, 14TH JUNE, 2007 

PRESENT: Councillor B Anderson in the Chair 

Councillors C Beverley, A Blackburn, 
D Coupar, Mrs R Feldman, A Gabriel, 
D Hollingsworth, G Hyde, R Lewis, 
A Ogilvie and F Robinson 

1 Chair's Opening Remarks
The Chair welcomed everyone to the first meeting of Scrutiny Board 
(Environment and Neighbourhoods) for the new municipal year 2007/2008. 

2 Declarations of Interest
The following personal interests were declared:- 

Councillor B Anderson in his capacity as a Council Board Member on 
West/North West Homes (Agenda Item 9) (Minute 6 refers) 

Councillor D Coupar in her capacity as a Member on Belle Isle North 
Estate Management Board (Agenda Item 9) (Minute 6 refers) 

Councillor D Hollingsworth in his capacity as a Council Board Member 
on East/North East Homes (Agenda Item 9) (Minute 6 refers) 

Councillor G Hyde in his capacity as a Council Board Member on
East/North East Homes (Agenda Item 9) (Minute 6 refers) 

3 Scrutiny Board (Neighbourhoods and Housing) - Minutes
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Scrutiny Board (Neighbourhoods and 
Housing) meeting held on 16th April 2007 be received and noted. 

4 Executive Board - Minutes
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Executive Board meeting held on 16th

May 2007 be received and noted. 

5 Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Minutes
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
meetings held on 2nd April 2007 and 16th May 2007 be received and noted. 

6 Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods) - Terms of 
Reference
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report on the 
terms of reference relevant to the Scrutiny Board (Environment and 
Neighbourhoods).

Appended to the report was a copy of the Terms of Reference for the 
information/comment of the meeting. 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 25th July, 2007

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



In addition to the above report, the following officers were in attendance to 
answer Members’ questions:- 

Neil Evans, Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods 
John Kearsley, Chief Support and Facilities Officer, City Services 
Stephen Smith, Head of Environmental Services, City Services 
Pippa Milne, Recycling and Waste Manager, City Services 
Tom Smith, Head of Performance and Communications Team, City Services 

The Chair invited the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods to make a 
brief presentation on an overview of services undertaken in his area, together 
with specific reference to those key issues for the coming year. 

The Board noted that Councillor L Carter, Executive Member, 
Neighbourhoods and Housing and Councillor S Smith, Executive Member,
Environmental Services would be invited to attend future Board meetings to 
outline their respective portfolios. 

RESOLVED – That the contents of the report and appendices, together with 
the presentation and the arrangements for scrutiny be noted. 

7 Performance Report Quarter 4  2006/07
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report on key 
performance information as at 31st March 2007, together with relevant detail in 
relation to a predicted Corporate Priority Assessment (CPA) score for 2007/08 
for the information/comment of the meeting.

In addition to the above report, the following officers were in attendance to 
answer Members’ questions:- 

Neil Evans, Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods 
John Kearsley, Chief Support and Facilities Officer, City Services 
Stephen Smith, Head of Environmental Services, City Services 
Pippa Milne, Recycling and Waste Manager, City Services 
Tom Smith, Head of Performance and Communications Team, City Services 

In summary, specific reference was made to the following issues:- 

clarification of the procedure adopted in Leeds for dealing with 
contamination in recycled waste

clarification of the inspection arrangements in relation to contaminated
waste being deposited in black/green bins

concerns expressed that the public perception in some areas was that 
recycled waste was being mixed with landfill waste
(Officers explained that there had been a specific project to deal with 
waste collection for back to back properties)

the need to improve recycling rates, especially around organic waste
collection and that the department should be aiming for much more 
ambitious recycling targets 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 25th July, 2007

Page 2



clarification of the Council’s Change Programme reporting structure 
for Environment and Neighbourhoods and the Directors’ responsibilities
in this area 

clarification of the role of Job Centre Plus in dealing with 
worklessness

clarification of domestic burglary performance information and the 
views of the Director towards combating people’s fear of crime 

clarification of the Director’s approach to enforcement and how 
requests for additional CCTV facilities were being dealt with 

clarification of the current position in relation to bin yard cleansing

the need for the Director to review those estates which were not ‘car
friendly’

clarification of the timescale in relation to the strategy for Jobs and 
Skills and the need for the Board to have an input 

RESOLVED –
(a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 
(b) That the Board’s Principal Scrutiny Adviser be requested to consult 

with the Performance Management Team in relation to the presentation 
of the performance indicators for future meetings.

8 The Board's Work Programme - Source of Work and Establishing the 
Board's Priorities
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report on 
proposed guidelines for the development of a work programme for the 
Environment and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board. 

Appended to the report were copies of the following documents for the 
information/comment of the meeting:- 

(a) Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods) Work Programme 
(June 2007) 

(b) Forward Plan of Key Decisions for the period 1st June 2007 to 30th

September 2007 

In addition to the above report, the following officers were in attendance to 
answer Members’ questions:- 

Neil Evans, Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods 
John Kearsley, Chief Support and Facilities Officer, City Services 
Stephen Smith, Head of Environmental Services, City Services 
Pippa Milne, Recycling and Waste Manager, City Services 
Tom Smith, Head of Performance and Communications Team, City Services 

Detailed discussion ensued on the contents of the report and appendices. 

RESOLVED –
(a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 25th July, 2007

Page 3



(b) That, in consultation with the Chair, the Board’s Principal Scrutiny 
Adviser be requested to prioritise the following issues to be 
investigated within the Board’s work programme for 2007/8:- 

Affordable housing (with specific reference to supply and 
demand)

Lettings Policy (with specific reference to Local/Choice Based 
Lettings)

Bulky Waste Strategy 

Recycling (with specific reference to improving recycling waste 
within the City) 

 Environmental Management around Council estates 

Anti Social Behaviour 

Jobs and Skills (with specific reference to addressing the levels
of employment throughout the city and training opportunities) 

Britain’s Cleanest City, together with revisiting the Action Plan 

Rat and mice problems within the city 

 Climate change

(c) That in relation to an outstanding report on housing needs in the city 
referred to at a previous Neighbourhoods and Housing Scrutiny Board, 
the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods be requested to 
forward a copy of the report to Board Member for their retention. 

(d) That the Board’s Principal Scrutiny Adviser be requested to email 
Board Members with a list of those key areas which are relevant to this 
Scrutiny Board. 

9 Date and Time of Next Meeting
Wednesday 25th July 2007 at 10.00 am.  (Pre-meeting for Board Members at 
9.30 am). 

10 List of Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods) Meetings for 
2007/2008

25th July 2007 
19th September 2007 
24th October 2007 
21st November 2007 
19th December 2007 
30th January 2008 
27th February 2008 
26th March 2008 
23rd April 2008 

N.B. All meetings to commence at 10.00 am (Pre-Meetings at 9.30 am) 

(The meeting concluded at 11.40 am). 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 25th July, 2007

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd August, 2007 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 4TH JULY, 2007 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor M Harris in the Chair 

 Councillors A Carter, R Brett, R Finnigan, 
R Harker, P Harrand, J Procter, S Smith, 
K Wakefield and J Blake 

 
 Councillor J Blake – Non-voting advisory member 

 
 

20 Late Items  
The Chair admitted the following late items to the agenda: 
 
Minute 25 - A report on the impact of recent flooding in the City prepared 

following the events and after the despatch of the agenda. 
 
Minute 33 - A report on the proposed introduction of the Local Development 

Scheme prepared following a response from the Secretary of 
State and admitted to the agenda to allow approval to a variation 
to the date of implementation at the earliest opportunity. 

 
21 Exclusion of Public  

RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt on 
the grounds that it is likely, in the view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of the exempt information so 
designated as follows: 
 
a.) The appendix to the report referred to in minute 31 under the terms of 
 Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3) and on the grounds that 
 the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
 interest in disclosing the information as disclosure would, or would be 
 likely to, prejudice the commercial interests of the Council, by virtue of 
 the fact that the appendix contains the Council’s estimate of the fee 
 that the proposed legal advisors would seek for providing the legal 
 advice required by the Authority and, if this were disclosed, would 
 prejudice the Council’s position during the competitive procurement 
 process for such legal advisors. By maintaining the exemption, it 
 increases the Council’s chance of securing a competitive and value for 
 money tender for the commission.   
 

22 Declaration of Interests  
Councillor Brett declared a personal interest in the item relating to provision of 
a new children’s centre at Allerton C of E Primary School (Minute 26) as 
Chair, and Councillor Harker as a member, of the Children Leeds Partnership. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd August, 2007 

 

A further declaration made during the meeting is referred to in minute 30 
(Councillor Blake) 
 
 

23 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 13th June 2007 be 
approved as a correct record.  
 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

24 Response to Deputation from Parents and Carers Action Group for Terry 
Yorath House  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report responding to issues 
raised by the deputation to Council on 18th April 2007 regarding the future 
provision of service at Terry Yorath House. The report concluded that whilst 
consultations were still at an early stage, the Parents and Carers Action 
Group would be treated as a key stakeholder throughout the process.  
 
RESOLVED – That the response of the Director to the deputation be noted 
and that a further report be submitted to the Board in November 2007 on the 
outcomes of the consultation and making appropriate recommendations. 
 
 
CITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

25 Impact of Flooding Events in June on the Leeds District  
The Directors of City Development and Resources submitted a report on the 
impact of a number of significant flooding incidents between 15th and 25th 
June 2007 which affected areas across the whole of the Leeds district.   The 
report highlighted the nature of the flooding, the initial understanding of its 
causes and made some preliminary suggestions as to how the Council and its 
partners might seek to respond to the events. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted and endorsement given to the 
proposed preliminary actions. 
 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

26 Design and Cost Report - Allerton C of E Primary School - Provision of a 
new Children's Centre  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on proposals to 
incur expenditure of £650,000 in respect of a scheme to provide a Children’s 
Centre at Allerton C of E Primary School. The report explained that the new 
Allerton C of E Primary School was to open in September 2007 following the 
amalgamation of Archbishop Cranmer C of E Primary School and Fir Tree 
Primary School. As a result, the site of the new school had been identified as 
a location for a Children’s Centre.  
 
RESOLVED –  

Page 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd August, 2007 

 

 (a) That the design proposals in respect of the scheme to provide a  
  Children’s Centre at Allerton C of E Primary School be approved; 

(b) That expenditure of £650,000 from capital scheme 13767/CEN/000 be 
 authorised. 
 
LEISURE 
 

27 Design and Cost Report - Improvements to Golf Courses  
The Chief Recreation Officer submitted a report requesting authority to spend 
£589,400 on improvement works at Temple Newsam, Roundhay Park, 
Middleton Park and Gotts Park golf courses arising from the Capital Receipt 
from the long-lease of Oulton Park golf course to De Vere’s Hotels, the funds 
from which were injected into the 2006/07 Capital Programme.  
 
RESOLVED – That approval be given to incur expenditure of £589,400 on 
golf course improvement works.  
 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

28 Capital Spending Plan - Improvements to Care Homes  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report on a proposal to 
inject £1,645,000 into the capital spending plan and to spend up to that 
amount on improvements to care homes. The report outlined that the injection 
would be made up of a £1,040,000 grant from the Department of Health 
alongside the £650,000 capital receipt from the sale of the Breece holiday 
home in Scarborough, designated for improvements to Local Authority care 
homes.  
 
Both Local Authority and independent care homes had been asked to submit 
bids for funding for improvements, following which it had been agreed that 
£700,000 would be allocated to fifty six independent homes, with £327,000 to 
be spent within sixteen Local Authority facilities.   
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That approval be given for the remaining £650,000 of the capital 
 receipt from the sale of the Breece be used to fund the capital scheme 
 for improvements to care homes; 
(b) That approval be given for the injection of the scheme into the capital 
 programme alongside authority to incur expenditure of £1,645,000; 
(c) That it be noted that the Director of Adult Social Services has 
 delegated powers to vary individual awards and promote schemes from 
 the reserve list.  
 
 
CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

29 Revised Corporate Planning Framework  
The Chief Officer (Executive Support) submitted a report on changes to the 
corporate planning framework for the city. The report identified a number of 
key changes including proposals to strengthen Elected Member involvement 

Page 7



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd August, 2007 

 

in corporate planning and Local Area Agreement processes by means of a 
Member Reference Group.  
 
It was proposed to merge the new Local Area Agreement and the Council’s 
Corporate Plan into one single document entitled the Leeds Strategic Plan, 
which would sit alongside the Community Strategy, the Council Business Plan 
and the Annual Performance Plan. These documents were to be added to the 
Council’s Budget and Policy Framework to reflect their status as part of the 
corporate planning framework for the city.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the new corporate planning framework be adopted; 
(b) That the proposal to amend the Constitution to include additions to the 
 Council’s Budget and Policy Framework be referred to the Corporate 
 Governance and Audit Committee for consideration; 
(c) That the Chief Executive be requested to develop a plan setting out the 
 timetable for implementation of the new framework; 
(d) That the proposal to establish a Member Reference Group to oversee 
 developments in relation to the implementation of the new framework 
 be noted. 
 

30 Progress Report on the PPP / PFI Programme in Leeds  
The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report providing a six-monthly update 
on the governance and management framework for the Authority’s PPP and 
PFI projects. Appended to the report was a breakdown of the status of current 
Council projects.  
 
RESOLVED – That the current status of the Authority’s PPP and PFI projects 
and programmes be noted.  
 
(During the discussion on this item Councillor Blake declared a personal 
interest as a governor of Otley Prince Henry’s Grammar School). 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

31 Design and Cost Report - Proposed Arena Development  
Further to minute 137 of the meeting held on 13th December 2006, the 
Director of City Development submitted a report on progress made in the 
operator procurement process for the proposed arena development. 
 
Following consideration of the appendix to the report designated exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3), in respect of which 
members had no questions or comments, it was; 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the progress made to date in the operator procurement process 
 be noted; 
(b) That the Director of City Development be requested to approve both 
 the long list and shortlist of potential operators and developers during 
 the Competitive Dialogue procurement process; 

Page 8



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd August, 2007 

 

(c) That the tender evaluation criteria to be used in the procurement 
 process for the appointment of the preferred developer for the 
 proposed arena be noted;  
(d) That an injection of funds (as detailed in the exempt appendix to the 
 report) into Capital Scheme No. 12589/ARE/000 for the incurred 
 expenditure of the appointment of consultants to provide specialist 
 legal advice to the Council on the operator and development 
 procurement processes through to contract award / financial close be 
 authorised. 
 

32 Design and Cost Report - Neville Street Environmental Improvements  

The Director of City Development submitted a report on progress made on 
environmental improvements to the Neville Street area and a proposal to incur 
expenditure of £5,091,400, on the scheme of which £3,091,400 would be 
funded from third party sources. The report explained that the scheme had 
altered significantly since its inception in 2004 and no longer included Dark 
Neville Street. As such it was proposed to rescind all previous approvals 
relating to the original project.  

 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the scheme design proposals and brief as presented be 
 approved; 
(b) That authority be given to rescind all previous approvals (scheme no. 
 01195;) 
(c) To approve the funding plan as presented and authorise an injection of 
 £4,604,400 into Capital Scheme No. 13951 and scheme expenditure 
 of that amount. 
 

33 Leeds Local Development Framework - Local Development Scheme  
Referring to minute 212 of the meeting held on 14th March 2007 the Director 
of City Development submitted a report indicating that the response of the 
Secretary of State had been received after the proposed date of introduction 
identified in that minute. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Local Development Scheme be formally brought into 
effect from 5th July 2007. 
 
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 

34 Supporting People Programme - Audit Commission Inspection  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods and the Director of Adult 
Social Services submitted a report on the key findings and recommendations 
arising from the recent Audit Commission inspection of the Supporting People 
Programme. The report explained that the Council currently administered the 
programme which comprised the Local Authority, Health and Probation 
Services. As such, the inspection examined the overall capacity of the Council 
to administer the programme, for which it received a ‘fair’ one star rating, with 
‘promising prospects’ for improvement.   
 

Page 9



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd August, 2007 

 

RESOLVED – That the Board note the contents of the report and support the 
actions being undertaken to implement the Audit Commission’s 
recommendations.  
 
 

35 Lease at Less Than Best Consideration - Agreement to Lease 12 
Miscellaneous Properties to LATCH on a 25 Year Lease Agreement  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on a 
proposal to grant a long lease at less than best consideration for 12 Leeds 
City Council owned miscellaneous properties to Leeds Action To Create 
Homes Ltd (LATCH.) The report detailed how the proposals would ensure 
capital investment in the properties to bring them up to decency standard and 
contribute to the regeneration of the area.  
 
Upon completion the flats would be let as affordable housing to tenants in line 
with the Council’s Housing Strategy, with LATCH assuming responsibility for 
the full maintenance and repair of the properties over the terms of the lease.  
 
RESOLVED – That approval be given to the principle of a 25 year lease to 
LATCH at less than best consideration, subject to approval by the Director of 
City Development of the terms of the lease and a reasonable rental level to be 
payable during the term of the lease, having regard to the level of social rents 
receivable and costs of refurbishment, subsequent maintenance, 
management and other outgoings.   
 

36 Disposal at Less Than Best Consideration - Waterloo Estate, Pudsey - 
For the provision of affordable housing  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the 
proposed disposal of two areas of land on the Waterloo Estate at less than 
best consideration to the Yorkshire Housing Association, for the purpose of 
developing 30 new build affordable homes through the Housing Corporation’s 
Approved Development Programme. 
 
The report outlined a number of options for the site which had been 
considered: 
 

1 Disposal of sites A and C, as identified on the plan attached to the 
report, at less than best consideration to Yorkshire Housing for 30 
affordable housing units; 

2 Retention of land for two bungalows for supported housing under 
the city wide Independent Living Project; 

3 Marketing of the remainder of the land within the pilot exercise for 
low cost home ownership, with the potential for a land swap to 
provide bungalows on the former Waterloo School site. 

 
It was indicated during presentation of the report that 34 and not 30 units as 
stated in the report would be delivered, two being for social rent and two for 
shared ownership. 
 

Page 10



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd August, 2007 

 

RESOLVED – That approval be given to the principle of disposal of the two 
subject sites on the Waterloo Estate to Yorkshire Housing Association at 
£5,000 per plot (less than best consideration) subject to approval by the 
Director of City Development, in order to deliver 34 new affordable homes, 
through the Housing Corporation Grant.   
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  6TH JULY 2007 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 13TH JULY 2007 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12:00 noon on 
Monday 16th July 2007.) 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes approved at the meeting  
held on Monday, 2nd July, 2007 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY, 4TH JUNE, 2007 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor P Grahame in the Chair 

 Councillors S Bentley, T Hanley, 
A Harrison, W Hyde and R Pryke 

 
Apologies Councillors B Anderson, S Golton and 

E Minkin 
 
 

1 Chair's Opening Remarks  
 

The Chair welcomed Members and officers to the first meeting of the 
Committee in the 2007/08 municipal year, and paid tribute to the hard work 
and contribution of the previous Chair, Councillor Driver, and other Members 
who were no longer on the Committee – Councillors Bale, Cleasby, Lancaster 
and Leadley.  

2 Declarations of Interests  
 

No declarations of interest were made. 
 

3 Minutes - 16th May 2007  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the two meetings held on 16th May 2007 be 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 

4 Minutes - Executive Board - 16th May 2007  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Executive Board meeting held on 16th 
May 2007 be received and noted. 
 

5 Matters Arising from the Minutes  
 

(a) Extension of ALMO Management Agreements (Minute No 246 
refers) 

 Further to Minute No 246 of the Executive Board meeting, 16th May 
2007, at a Member’s request, it was agreed that the decision to extend 
the management agreements with the housing Arms Length 
Management Organisations by a further five years, to 31st January 
2013, should be referred to the Scrutiny Board (Environment and 
Neighbourhoods) with a view to that Board considering conducting a 
formal review of that decision. 

 
(b) Services based at Terry Yorath House (Minute No 240 refers) 
 Further to OSC Minute No 109, 16th May 2007, and Minute No 240 of 

the Executive Board meeting, 16th May 2007, and in response to a 
Member’s query, the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Agenda Item 8

Page 13



Minutes approved at the meeting  
held on Monday, 2nd July, 2007 

 

reported that the Director of Adult Services had now reconsidered her 
decision, taking into account the views of OSC expressed on 16th May, 
and had made another delegated decision to continue the contract with 
The Disabilities Trust for the provision of care services at Terry Yorath 
House for a further 12 months, with the option of two further 12 month 
extensions, and including a 4 month notice period in the contract.  
Following the previous Call-In, this latest decision could not be called-
in. 

 
 It was agreed that the Scrutiny Board (Health and Adult Social Care) 

should be requested to monitor the ongoing consultation arrangements 
with residents and their carers which formed part of the wider review 
and consultation process relating to the provision of adult residential 
care services. 

 
6 Minutes - Scrutiny Board (City Services) - 18th April 2007  
 

RESOLVED –  
(a) That the minutes of the above meeting be received and noted. 
(b) That the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development be requested to 

obtain and circulate to OSC Members details of the outcome of the 
Crown Cuisine Inquiry referred to in Minute No 105(a). 

 
7 Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Terms of Reference  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report setting 
out the formal terms of reference of the Committee. 
 
In response to Members’ queries, the Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development undertook to ascertain and circulate to OSC Members further 
information about the present situation regarding Corporate Priority Boards.  
He also undertook to refer to the Scrutiny Board (Health and Adult Social 
Care), on a recommendation monitoring basis, the issue of progress on the 
previous Board’s Inquiry into hospital cleanliness, MRSA etc. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee’s terms of reference be noted. 
 

8 Annual Scrutiny Report to Council - Action Plan  
 

The Committee considered a report submitted by the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development regarding the Action Plan associated with the 2006/07 
Scrutiny Annual Report to Council, due to be considered by the Council on 
20th June 2007. 
 
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development reported that further 
guidance from the Government was awaited on issues such as ‘community 
calls for action’ and the extension of scrutiny arrangements to external 
partner organisations, and the Committee would receive update reports as 
appropriate. 
 

Page 14



Minutes approved at the meeting  
held on Monday, 2nd July, 2007 

 

RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

9 Performance Monitoring - Quarter Four 2006/07  
 

The Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement submitted a summary 
report relating to key performance indicators for each area covered by an 
officer from Corporate Priority Board, and highlighting key areas of under - 
performance which OSC or the other Scrutiny Boards might wish to tackle in 
greater depth.  The impact of under - performance in key areas on the 
Council’s overall Corporate Performance Assessment (CPA) score was 
emphasised. 
 
The key areas highlighted at the meeting were:- 
 

• Planning performance, and whether or not this was improving – The 
Chair stated OSC would be receiving an update report at its September 
meeting, following its Inquiry in 2006/07; 

• VC11c – Percentage of top 5% of earners that are disabled (excluding 
schools) and BV16a – The number of staff declaring that they meet the 
DDA disability definition as a percentage of the total workforce; 

• BV12 – The proportion of working days/shifts lost to sickness absence 
– and the variations between Departments; 

• BV126 – Domestic burglaries per 1,000 of the population – and 
BV127b – Robberies per year per 1,000 of the population – and the 
variations between different parts of the City; 

• BV203 – The percentage change in the average number of families 
placed in temporary accommodation; 

• BV201 – Direct payments per 100,000 of the population; 

• Children and Young People – issues relating to weaknesses in 
management information and the allocation of resources across the 
City. 

• CP-AS50 – provision of out of hours services – Members requested 
details regarding the 55 services referred to in the report. 

 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted, and Scrutiny Chairs, in consultation 
with the Scrutiny Support Unit and their Boards, decide which key areas of 
under - performance to investigate during 2007/08. 
 

10 OSC Work Programme 2007/08 - Sources of Work and Establishing the 
Committee's Priorities  

 
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report regarding 
establishing the Committee’s work programme for 2007/08, together with a 
relevant extract of the Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions for the period 
1st June to 30th September 2007. 
 
The Committee decided to add reviews of various previous issues to its work 
programme – When Contracts Go Wrong, Direct Payments and Elections 
and Electoral Arrangements – to refer a review of the previous Waste 

Page 15



Minutes approved at the meeting  
held on Monday, 2nd July, 2007 

 

Strategy Inquiry to the Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods) 
and also requested an update on the Grass Cutting Service contract. 
 

11 Scrutiny Training Dates  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development gave notice of two Scrutiny 
training sessions – one for Scrutiny Chairs on 3rd July, 9.30 am to 12.00 
noon, and one for Scrutiny Members on 6th July, 9.30 am– 12.00 noon. 
 

12 Dates and Times of Future Meetings  
 

Monday 2nd July 2007 
Monday 3rd September 2007 
Monday 1st October 2007 
Monday 5th November 2007 
Monday 3rd December 2007 
Monday 7th January 2008 
Monday 4th February 2008 
Monday 3rd March 2008 
Monday 7th April 2008 
 
All at 10.00 am (Pre-Meetings at 9.30 am). 
 
At the request of a Member, the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development  
undertook to canvass OSC Members regarding OSC meetings always being 
on a Monday. 
 
 
 

Page 16



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny Support and Member Development  
 
Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods) 
 
Date:   25th July  2007  
 
Subject:  Members’ Questions 
 

        
 
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 Members of the Board have requested the opportunity to discuss relevant 
questions and issues with the Executive Board members whose responsibilities 
fall within the remit of this Scrutiny Board.  The Executive Board Member with 
responsibility for Neighbourhoods and Housing and the Executive Board 
Member with responsibility for Environmental Services have been invited to this 
Board meeting. 

 
1.2 Representatives from the department will also be in attendance. 
 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 That the Board identifies any issues for further scrutiny arising from the 
Members’ Questions session. 

 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ward Members consulted 
(referred to in report) 

 

 

 

Originator: S Winfield  
 

Tel:24 74707  

Agenda Item 9

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods) 
 
Date:   25th  July 2007 
 
Subject:  Monitoring of Scrutiny Board recommendations 
 

        
 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Last year Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to adopt a new, more formal 

system of recommendation tracking, to ensure that scrutiny recommendations were 
more rigorously followed through. 

 
1.2 As a result, each Board will receive a quarterly report, coinciding with the quarterly 

presentation of performance information, the next report is scheduled for September. 
This will allow the Board to monitor progress and identify completed 
recommendations; those progressing to plan; and those where there is either an 
obstacle or progress is not adequate. The Board will then be able to take further 
action as appropriate.  This will apply to all previous recommendations made, relevant 
to the Board, that are considered ‘live’.   

 
1.3 In the meantime, the Chair has requested an earlier update on an inquiry into Anti-

Social Behaviour Interventions that was undertaken by the Scrutiny Board in 2004/5 in 
order to ascertain which issues required further work.  In addition, following on from 
the discussion at the June Board meeting, an update on the recommendations made 
following an inquiry into Affordable Housing (2005/06) has also been submitted.  
Members have received copies of both these final reports as background information.   

 
2.0 Updates 
 
2.1 Members are asked to consider the responses provided, and to decide whether any 

further scrutiny involvement is required, over and above the recommendation tracking 
process described above.  

 
2.2 In deciding whether to undertake any further work, members will need to consider the 

balance of the board’s work programme. 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ward Members consulted 
  (referred to in report) 

 

 

 

Originator: S Winfield 
 

Tel: 247 4707 

Agenda Item 10

Page 19



 
3.0 Recommendation 
 
3.1 Members are asked to consider the formal responses provided and to decide whether  

further scrutiny involvement is required. 

Page 20



  
S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
N
E
IG
H
B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
S
 A
N
D
 H
O
U
S
IN
G
) 

 
A
n
ti
-S
o
c
ia
l 
B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
  
- 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
 

 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
re
p
o
rt
 

b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 

 

N
H
D
 

T
o
 b
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
t 
th
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
im
e
. 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 2
 

 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 

re
c
e
iv
e
s
 a
 d
e
ta
il
e
d
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 

o
f 
th
e
 S
a
fe
r 
L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

m
a
d
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
. 

 

 N
H
D
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 0
7
 

A
S
B
 u
p
d
a
te
 a
n
d
 k
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
a
s
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 S
a
fe
r 
L
e
e
d
s
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
n
 1
5
/0
6
/0
7
. 
T
h
e
 

S
a
fe
r 
L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
s
 d
u
e
 f
o
r 
re
fr
e
s
h
 i
n
 2
0
0
8
, 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 C
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 D
is
o
rd
e
r 
A
c
t 
w
ill
 

lik
e
ly
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re
q
u
ir
e
 a
 t
h
re
e
 y
e
a
r 
c
y
c
le
 o
f 
a
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
th
is
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
p
la
c
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

ro
lli
n
g
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
p
la
n
. 
G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 

C
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 D
is
o
rd
e
r 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
. 
 

Page 21



R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 3
 

 
W
h
il
s
t 
n
o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 w
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
o
li
c
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
n
ti
-S
o
c
ia
l 

B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
P
a
n
e
ls
 w
o
rk
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 m

u
lt
ip
le
 

b
re
a
c
h
e
s
 o
f 
A
S
B
O
s
, 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 b
re
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
fi
rs
t 

ti
m
e
 b
re
a
c
h
e
s
 a
re
 d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 

ro
b
u
s
tl
y
. 

 

N
H
D
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
7
 

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
a
ll 
A
S
B
O
 b
re
a
c
h
e
s
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
ro
m
 c
o
u
rt
 a
n
d
 

e
n
s
u
re
 s
e
n
te
n
c
e
s
 a
re
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 s
e
n
te
n
c
in
g
 g
u
id
e
lin
e
s
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
is
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
rt
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
ra
in
in
g
 d
o
e
s
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 m

a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
. 
  

J
u
v
e
n
ile
 A
S
B
O
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 w
e
ll 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
d
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 

B
re
a
c
h
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 o
n
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
 a
t 
th
e
 A
S
B
 p
a
n
e
ls
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 w
h
a
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 4
 

 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

re
s
e
a
rc
h
e
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

b
re
a
c
h
e
s
 o
f 
o
rd
e
rs
 t
o
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

ta
il
o
re
d
 m

o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 t
o
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
im

 o
f 

m
in
im

is
in
g
 b
re
a
c
h
e
s
. 

 

 N
H
D
 

  U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 0
7
 

S
e
e
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
 u
p
d
a
te
. 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 5
 

 
W
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
h
o
w
 o
th
e
r 

 N
H
D
 

  P
re
v
io
u
s
 U
p
d
a
te
 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 c
le
a
rl
y
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 w
h
e
re
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d
e
a
l 

w
it
h
 A
S
B
 m
u
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 u
n
it
 a
im
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 u
s
e
 

le
g
a
l 
m
e
a
s
u
re
 i
f 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
io
n
 w
o
rk
. 
 

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 c
lo
s
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
1
0
5
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
e
re
 

Page 22



m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
re
 u
ti
li
s
e
d
 b
e
fo
re
 

A
S
B
O
s
 a
re
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 

o
rd
e
r 
to
 p
re
s
e
rv
e
 t
h
e
 A
S
B
O
 

a
s
 a
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
la
s
t 
re
s
o
rt
, 

in
 m

o
s
t 
c
a
s
e
s
. 
 W

e
 a
ls
o
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
A
S
B
O
s
 a
re
 

n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 r
o
u
ti
n
e
ly
 i
n
 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
in
g
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 o
r 
w
h
e
re
 

th
e
re
 a
re
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

is
s
u
e
s
. 
  

 

c
lo
s
e
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 n
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
. 
T
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
 

th
e
 A
S
B
 w
a
s
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
A
B
C
s
 (
a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
) 
a
n
d
 A
S
B
 w
a
rn
in
g
s
 (
p
re
 

le
g
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 w
a
rn
in
g
).
 O
th
e
r 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 o
th
e
r 
w
a
rn
in
g
s
/c
a
u
ti
o
n
s
 (
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

c
a
u
ti
o
n
/ 
N
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
In
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
e
e
k
 p
o
s
s
e
s
s
io
n
, 
v
e
rb
a
l 
w
a
rn
in
g
s
 b
y
 P
o
lic
e
, 
A
S
B
U
 o
r 

A
L
M
O
, 
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
to
 d
iv
e
rs
io
n
a
ry
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
. 

 In
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 J
u
n
e
- 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
 t
h
e
 A
S
B
U
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
n
to
 6
6
 A
B
C
s
 w
it
h
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
. 
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 t
o
 m
e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
A
B
C
s
 h
a
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
th
e
 5
2
4
 u
s
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 u
n
it
 (
s
in
c
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
in
g
 b
e
g
a
n
) 
o
n
ly
 2
5
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 a
n
 A
B
C
 h
a
v
e
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 a
n
 A
S
B
O
. 
(l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 5
%
).
  

 T
h
e
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 w
o
u
ld
 u
s
u
a
lly
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 

to
 u
s
e
 A
S
B
O
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 (
th
e
 d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 s
ta
te
s
 “
…
 c
a
u
s
in
g
 h
a
ra
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 a
la
rm

 o
f 
d
is
tr
e
s
s
 

to
 o
n
e
 o
r 
m
o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 n
o
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
…
”)
 T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
s
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
s
e
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 a
n
 A
S
B
O
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
h
e
 

A
S
B
U
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
 a
re
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 M
A
R
A
C
s
 (
M
u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 R
is
k
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
) 
w
h
e
re
 c
a
s
e
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
in
g
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 a
n
d
 p
e
rp
e
tr
a
to
rs
 o
f 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 t
o
 u
s
e
 a
n
 A
S
B
O
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
o
n
e
 i
n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 
 

 In
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
o
th
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
s
e
s
 a
n
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 

u
s
e
 o
f 
a
n
 A
S
B
O
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A
S
B
 p
a
n
e
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
h
e
re
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 

fr
o
m
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
o
c
ia
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  
w
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 o
f 
a
 c
a
s
e
 b
e
fo
re
 a
p
p
ro
v
in
g
 a
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
. 
  

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
7
 

N
o
th
in
g
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
to
 a
d
d
 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 6
 

 
W
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

 N
H
D
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
7
 

L
e
e
d
s
 w
a
s
 v
is
it
e
d
 b
y
 R
e
s
p
e
c
t 
T
a
s
k
 F
o
rc
e
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
. 
T
h
e
y
 w
e
re
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 

Page 23



N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
s
u
b
m
it
 

a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

d
e
ta
il
in
g
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
jo
in
t 

w
o
rk
in
g
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 A
S
B
O
s
 i
s
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
ll
y
 a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
. 

 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 a
s
 R
e
s
p
e
c
t 
A
re
a
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 f
iv
e
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
b
o
v
e
. 
R
T
F
 

w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
r 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 k
e
y
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
1
0
 m
o
n
th
s
 t
o
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
. 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 7
 

 
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 P
o
s
it
iv
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 

e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 i
ts
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 

 
W
e
 a
ls
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 i
ts
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
, 

it
 i
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

a
ll
o
w
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 g
re
a
te
r 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

a
n
d
 L
e
is
u
re
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 0
7
 

 A
s
 P
A
Y
P
 i
s
 n
o
w
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
p
o
o
le
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
w
it
h
 L
A
A
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 s
e
t 

u
p
 u
n
ti
l 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
, 
th
e
 M

IS
 s
y
s
te
m
 w

ill
 s
h
if
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P
A
Y
P
 d
a
ta
 b
a
s
e
. 
 A
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 P
A
Y
P
, 
Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 Y
IP
 t
o
 

a
lig
n
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 i
n
 U
M
IS
  
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m
e
 g
iv
e
 a
 f
u
ll 
p
ic
tu
re
 

o
f 
p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
. 
 I
n
 2
0
0
6
/7
 a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
,0
1
3
  
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 
F
o
r 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
P
e
o
p
le
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 
M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 
ta
rg
e
ts
 
s
e
t 
b
y
 
L
A
A
  

ra
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 
th
o
s
e
 
s
e
t 
b
y
 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 
m
a
d
e
 
it
 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 
to
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
m
o
re
 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 d
iv
e
rs
io
n
a
ry
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
n
 g
e
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
a
l 
h
o
t 
s
p
o
t 
a
re
a
s
 w

h
ic
h
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 a
llo
w
 u
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 P
o
s
it
iv
e
  
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
n
 

2
0
0
7
/8
. 
 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 8
 

 
T
h
a
t 
w
h
e
re
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 C
h
a
ri
o
t,
 a
re
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
, 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

to
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 

 N
H
D
 

  U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 0
7
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 C
h
a
m
p
io
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 p
o
lic
e
 l
e
d
 m
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
im
e
d
 

a
t 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 k
e
y
 c
ri
m
e
 t
y
p
e
s
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 i
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 a
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
 (
1
 p
e
r 
p
o
lic
e
 d
iv
is
io
n
 p
e
r 
m
o
n
th
).
 L
o
c
a
l 

ta
s
k
in
g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
. 
 

Page 24



L
e
e
d
s
, 
ta
k
in
g
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

th
e
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 
is
s
u
e
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 t
o
 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 

 R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 9
 

 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 A
n
ti
-S
o
c
ia
l 

B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
P
a
n
e
ls
 

p
e
ri
o
d
ic
a
ll
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
ir
 

w
o
rk
lo
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
s
 

m
a
x
im

is
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
in
p
u
t 

fr
o
m
 o
th
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

s
e
c
to
r,
 i
s
 u
ti
li
s
e
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 
  

 
W
e
 a
ls
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 i
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

A
n
ti
-S
o
c
ia
l 
B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
U
n
it
, 

th
is
 i
s
 m

a
tc
h
e
d
 b
y
 a
n
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

A
n
ti
-S
o
c
ia
l 
B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

P
a
n
e
ls
. 

 

 N
H
D
 

  P
re
v
io
u
s
 U
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 H
o
m
e
 O
ff
ic
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
A
S
B
O
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 

m
a
k
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
a
n
 A
S
B
O
. 
A
S
B
 p
a
n
e
l 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 i
n
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 

th
e
s
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
(s
e
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 3
) 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
7
 

A
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 p
a
p
e
r 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
u
t 
w
it
h
 A
S
B
 p
a
n
e
l 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
A
S
B
 P
a
n
e
ls
. 

   

Page 25



R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
0
 

 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

A
n
ti
-S
o
c
ia
l 
B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
U
n
it
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 

im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 

A
c
t 
w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
, 
a
n
d
 

u
p
d
a
te
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 o
f 
a
n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

a
ri
s
in
g
. 

 

 N
H
D
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
7
 

 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 A
S
B
 p
a
n
e
ls
 a
n
d
 a
t 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
le
v
e
l 
w
h
e
n
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 a
re
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
e
s
. 

 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 
s
te
e
ri
n
g
 

g
ro
u
p
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
E
v
e
ry
 C
h
ild
 M

a
tt
e
rs
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 a
re
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 l
e
d
 b
y
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 a
 k
e
y
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t 
fo
r 
L
e
e
d
s
 a
s
 a
 R
e
s
p
e
c
t 
A
re
a
. 
(s
e
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 6
) 

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 p
la
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 “
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
” 
a
n
d
 

“S
ta
y
in
g
 S
a
fe
” 

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 h
a
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 l
in
k
e
d
 w
it
h
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
ilo
t 

C
o
m
m
o
n
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 (
C
A
F
) 
in
 W

e
s
t 
L
e
e
d
s
. 
  

T
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 F
a
m
ily
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
 o
f 
th
e
 F
S
 &
 

P
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
 A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 J
o
in
t 
A
re
a
 R
e
v
ie
w
 (
J
A
R
) 
c
a
s
e
 f
ile
 r
e
v
ie
w
 (
 p
re
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 )
 

w
o
rk
. 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
1
 

 
T
h
a
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

P
C
S
O
s
 a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

W
a
rd
e
n
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 c
it
y
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 f
o
r 
ta
c
k
li
n
g
 a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 

 

  N
H
D
 

    U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
7
  

P
C
S
O
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
o
 1
7
0
  

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
2
 

 
 

Page 26



 
T
h
a
t 
W
a
rd
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 

s
y
s
te
m
a
ti
c
a
ll
y
 k
e
p
t 
in
fo
rm

e
d
 

o
f 
a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

is
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
ir
 W

a
rd
 b
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 A
L
M
O
s
, 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 

la
w
. 
  
W
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 b
e
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

th
a
t 
w
il
l 
a
ll
o
w
 t
h
e
 ‘
tw
o
 w
a
y
’ 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 

W
a
rd
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
 W

e
 a
ls
o
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
L
M
O
s
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 o
c
c
u
rs
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 
  

 

N
H
D
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
7
 

A
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 o
f 
a
ll 
A
S
B
O
s
 i
s
 n
o
w
 s
e
n
t 
o
u
t 
m
o
n
th
ly
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 f
o
r 
C
S
  
( 
to
 t
h
e
n
 b
e
 

d
is
s
e
m
in
a
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
ro
u
te
s
).
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t 
is
 u
n
d
e
rg
o
in
g
 a
 

fa
c
e
lif
t 
a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t.
 

O
th
e
r 
d
a
ta
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 c
a
s
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 b
y
 t
h
e
 A
S
B
U
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 a
 w
a
rd
 b
a
s
is
 

a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t.
  

A
S
B
U
 t
e
a
m
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
 a
n
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
tt
e
n
d
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
fo
ru
m
s
 

to
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
. 
 A
L
M
O
/ 
A
S
B
U
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
 t
o
 

re
v
ie
w
 c
a
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 f
ro
m
 b
o
th
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
‘t
a
s
k
in
g
’ 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
3
 

 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

R
e
v
iz
it
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 i
t 

m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 m

o
re
 

w
id
e
ly
 

 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

a
n
d
 L
e
is
u
re
 

U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 0
7
 

 T
h
e
 R

e
v
iz
it
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 j
o
in
tl
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
th
 O

ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 O
ri
g
in
a
lly
 a
 p
ilo
t 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
 i
n
 W

e
s
t 
a
re
a
 w
h
e
re
 i
t 
is
 w
e
ll 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
, 
R
e
v
iz
it
 h
a
s
 

a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
fo
u
r 
w
e
d
g
e
s
. 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
4
 

 
T
h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
s
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

a
n
d
 L
e
is
u
re
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 0
7
 

 T
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
re
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 3
3
 w
a
rd
s
 

Page 27



fr
o
m
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
th
e
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 ‘
n
a
rr
o
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 g
a
p
’ 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 i
s
 

s
c
o
p
e
 f
o
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

w
a
y
s
 o
f 
‘r
e
w
a
rd
in
g
 g
o
o
d
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r’
 i
n
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

 

is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
. 
 T
h
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
m
is
e
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
. 
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 a
 b
ro
a
d
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
th
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 C
a
rd
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
d
 a
s
 a
 m

e
th
o
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 w
h
ic
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 I
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 L
e
e
d
s
 Y
o
u
th
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 B
re
e
z
e
 C
a
rd
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 d
is
c
o
u
n
ts
 f
o
r 
s
o
m
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 o
n
 s
o
m
e
 g
o
o
d
s
. 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
5
 

 
T
h
a
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 

to
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

m
o
re
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 w
it
h
 8
 –
 1
3
 y
e
a
r 

o
ld
s
, 
s
h
o
u
ld
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
ll
o
w
. 

 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

a
n
d
 L
e
is
u
re
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 0
7
 

 T
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
g
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 p
re
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 a
s
 1
3
 t
o
 1
9
. 
 W

it
h
in
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
 

fl
e
x
ib
le
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 w
h
e
re
b
y
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 2
0
%
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 

th
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
a
re
 
a
g
e
d
 
1
1
 
a
n
d
 
1
2
. 
 
G
iv
e
n
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 
lim

it
a
ti
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
B
e
s
t 
V
a
lu
e
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 1
3
 t
o
 1
9
 a
g
e
 g
ro
u
p
, 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
a
s
 o
n
e
 a
g
e
n
c
y
, 
to
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
fl
e
x
ib
ili
ty
. 

 S
o
m
e
 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
, 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l,
 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 
h
a
v
e
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 
b
e
e
n
 
ta
k
e
n
 
in
 
o
rd
e
r 
to
 
p
a
rt
ia
lly
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
:-
 

- 
S
e
n
io
r 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 o
ld
e
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 w

o
rk
 w

it
h
 a
 y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
a
g
e
 

g
ro
u
p
 i
n
 a
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 b
u
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 y
o
u
th
 w
o
rk
e
rs
. 

- 
Y
o
u
th
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 s
o
m
e
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 8
 t
o
 1
3
 a
g
e
 r
a
n
g
e
. 

- 
A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 (
P
A
Y
P
) 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
a
g
e
 

ra
n
g
e
. 

- 
O
p
e
n
 a
g
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 f
o
r 
B
re
e
z
e
 o
n
 T
o
u
r 
e
v
e
n
ts
. 

  

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
6
 

 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

   

  U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 0
7
 

Page 28



S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 

fo
r 
n
o
n
-a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
p
a
re
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

d
e
v
is
e
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 m

e
th
o
d
s
 o
f 

m
a
k
in
g
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 p
a
re
n
ts
 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
. 

                   R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
7
 

 
T
h
a
t,
 s
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

u
lt
im

a
te
ly
 b
e
 j
u
d
g
e
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l,
 t
h
e
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

         N
H
D
 

 

 T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 c
lo
s
e
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
s
e
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 f
o
r 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 b
y
 p
a
re
n
ts
 o
n
 

p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 a
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
b
id
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D
fE
S
 f
o
r 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 p
a
th
fi
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
je
c
t 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 t
it
le
d
 “
A
ll
 R
e
la
ti
v
e
”.
 A
 t
e
a
m
 o
f 
3
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
ru
it
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 W

e
b
s
te
r 
S
tr
a
tt
o
n
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 

p
a
re
n
ts
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
a
g
e
d
 8
 –
 1
3
) 
w
h
o
 a
re
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
o
r 
c
ri
m
e
. 
It
 i
s
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
 k
e
y
 s
o
u
rc
e
 o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
T
h
e
 2
 y
e
a
r 
p
ro
je
c
t,
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 

e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 D
fE
S
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
fe
w
 m

o
n
th
s
. 

 T
h
e
 A
ll
 R
e
la
ti
v
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
ill
 p
a
y
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 “
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
h
a
s
e
” 
a
n
d
 t
o
 

o
v
e
rc
o
m
in
g
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 t
o
 p
a
re
n
ta
l 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
n
ti
re
 1
6
 w
e
e
k
 W

e
b
s
te
r 
S
tr
a
tt
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 c
ru
c
ia
l 
to
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
. 

 A
ll 
re
la
ti
v
e
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 R
E
S
P
E
C
T
 t
o
 e
m
p
lo
y
 a
n
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
s
y
c
h
o
lo
g
is
t 
to
 w
o
rk
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
ly
 w
it
h
 p
a
re
n
ts
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 e
x
h
ib
it
in
g
 a
n
ti
 s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
 a
n
y
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
. 

     T
h
is
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 2
0
0
6
 i
n
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 u
s
in
g
 S
a
fe
r 
&
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 N
R
F
. 
W
h
ile
 t
h
is
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
n
’t
 m

a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 i
t 
w
ill
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
ts
 

R
E
S
P
E
C
T
 a
g
e
n
d
a
. 

 

Page 29



c
o
n
s
id
e
rs
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
S
ig
n
p
o
s
t,
 b
o
th
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 m

a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 

b
u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

b
e
y
o
n
d
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
6
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

a
 c
it
y
 w
id
e
 a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
. 

 R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
8
 

 
T
h
a
t 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
o
 a
 f
u
tu
re
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 i
ts
 

p
o
li
c
ie
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
ru
a
n
c
y
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

la
te
s
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 T
ru
a
n
c
y
 S
w
e
e
p
. 

 
W
e
 a
ls
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
u
c
h
 T
ru
a
n
c
y
 S
w
e
e
p
s
 a
re
 

d
o
n
e
 a
s
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 m

a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 

m
o
m
e
n
tu
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 

th
e
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e
 

 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
 

(i
) 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
, 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 W

e
lf
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 c
a
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 w
it
h
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

tr
u
a
n
c
y
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
; 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re
a
 T
ru
a
n
c
y
 S
w
e
e
p
s
, 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 C
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
, 
T
a
rg
e
t 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 
L
e
g
a
l 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 O
rd
e
rs
, 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 P
e
n
a
lt
y
 N
o
ti
c
e
s
. 
 

 A
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

fo
u
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 s
it
e
 

h
tt
p
:/
/i
n
fo
b
a
s
e
.l
e
e
d
s
.g
o
v
.u
k
/d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
/v
ie
w
d
o
c
.a
s
p
x
?
c
id
=
4
7
2
7
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 E
x
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
5
/0
6
  
 

h
tt
p
:/
/i
n
fo
b
a
s
e
.l
e
e
d
s
.g
o
v
.u
k
/d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
/v
ie
w
d
o
c
.a
s
p
x
?
c
id
=
1
0
6
9
6
 

 N
e
w
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 p
e
rs
is
te
n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

 

•
 
T
h
e
 a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 A
n
ti
-b
u
lly
in
g
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 C
h
a
m
p
io
n
, 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 C
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
. 

•
 
L
a
u
n
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 ‘
S
p
e
a
k
 o
u
t 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
b
u
lly
in
g
’ 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 ‘
T
a
lk
in
g
 

L
e
e
d
s
 D
V
D
’.
 

•
 
R
e
-e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 R
h
in
o
’s
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
, 
a
 j
o
in
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

a
n
d
 L
e
e
d
s
 R
h
in
o
’s
 t
o
 c
o
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 m
e
n
to
r 
5
0
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
u
p
ils
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 y
e
a
rs
 9
 

a
n
d
 1
0
 a
t 
h
ig
h
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
th
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
m
is
s
in
g
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 c
it
y
 w
id
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 M
is
s
in
g
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 (
C
M
E
) 
P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
. 

Page 30



•
 
T
a
rg
e
te
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 1
5
 P
e
rs
is
te
n
t 
A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 T
a
rg
e
t 
H
ig
h
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
ro
m
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 D
fE
S
 a
n
d
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
).
 

•
 
T
a
rg
e
te
d
 C
h
ild
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
w
e
e
p
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 m
a
rk
e
ts
. 

•
 
L
a
u
n
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 H
o
lid
a
y
s
 i
n
 t
e
rm

 t
im
e
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 w
it
h
 L
e
e
d
s
 c
o
-o
p
 

•
 
R
e
fo
c
u
s
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 W

e
lf
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
7
. 

•
 
T
h
e
 a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
t 
4
0
 P
S
A
s
 (
P
a
re
n
t 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 A
d
v
is
e
rs
) 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 E
x
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
ro
m
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
. 

 (i
i)
 T
ru
a
n
c
y
 S
w
e
e
p
s
 a
re
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w
it
h
 W

Y
P
, 
u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 C
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 D
is
o
rd
e
r 
A
c
t 

a
n
d
 a
s
 s
u
c
h
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 P
o
lic
e
 w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
p
o
w
e
r 
to
 s
to
p
 a
n
d
 d
e
ta
in
 t
ru
a
n
ts
 i
f 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
. 

 T
h
is
 a
c
a
d
e
m
ic
 y
e
a
r 
th
e
 E
W
S
 a
n
d
 W

Y
P
 h
a
v
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
1
7
 S
w
e
e
p
s
 a
n
d
 s
to
p
p
e
d
 9
6
 

p
u
p
ils
. 
 E
W
O
's
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 t
ru
a
n
c
y
 s
w
e
e
p
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 S
L
A
 w
it
h
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 

n
o
t 
a
ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 o
f 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
E
W
O
 t
im
e
. 
A
s
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fr
o
n
t 
lin
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 o
c
c
u
r,
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 l
e
s
s
 f
le
x
ib
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
 o
n
 E
W
O
's
 w
h
ic
h
 m

a
y
 r
e
s
tr
ic
t 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
ru
a
n
c
y
 s
w
e
e
p
s
. 
 

 W
e
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 '
s
w
e
e
p
' 
in
 t
h
e
 E
a
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
it
y
 

w
it
h
 a
 v
ie
w
 t
o
 t
h
is
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
p
lo
y
e
d
 a
s
 a
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
5
 w
e
d
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
. 

 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
L
e
g
a
l 
C
a
s
e
s
 a
u
tu
m
n
 T
e
rm

 2
0
0
6
/0
7
 

 T
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
L
e
g
a
l 
c
a
s
e
s
 =
 7
8
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
n
 =
 1
4
 

F
a
s
t 
T
ra
c
k
 =
 2
0
 

P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 O
rd
e
rs
 =
 2
 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 N
o
ti
c
e
s
 =
 4
2
 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
9
 

 
T
h
a
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 w

o
rk
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w

it
h
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 A
d
v
is
o
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 &
 S
k
ill
s
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 f
o
rm

 L
e
e
d
s
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
in
g
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
  
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

Page 31



b
y
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
k
il
ls
 i
n
to
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

to
 c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 

e
n
tr
e
p
re
n
e
u
ri
a
l 
in
te
re
s
ts
 a
n
d
 

th
a
t 
a
n
y
 e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
th
is
 

ty
p
e
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

b
e
 c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 
 

 

 T
h
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
:-
 

 

•
 
S
e
n
io
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 o
n
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 b
u
ild
in
g
 

•
 
B
ri
e
fi
n
g
 f
o
r 
k
e
y
 s
ta
ff
 o
n
 O
fs
te
d
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

•
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
k
e
y
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 G
u
id
e
 

•
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 g
a
p
s
 i
n
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

•
 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 S
ta
ff
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

•
 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 B
ro
k
e
ri
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
/d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

•
 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

•
 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 m
a
tc
h
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

 
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 F
u
n
d
in
g
 -
 A
ll 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
w
a
rd
e
d
 f
u
n
d
s
, 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

£
1
5
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
 £
2
0
,0
0
0
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
, 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
n
to
 

th
e
 c
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m
 a
t 
K
S
4
  
a
n
d
  
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
K
S
4
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

th
e
 e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
o
f 
4
 d
a
y
s
 o
f 
 e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
 y
e
a
r.
  
 

 A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
is
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 m
a
n
y
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

m
o
s
t 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 '
e
v
e
n
ts
' 
o
f 
o
n
e
 d
a
y
 d
u
ra
ti
o
n
. 
  

  E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 (
E
L
 E
B
P
) 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 c
it
y
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
, 
e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

 E
v
e
ry
d
a
y
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
s
 P
ro
je
c
t 

F
if
ty
 f
iv
e
 Y
e
a
r 
1
0
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 a
t 
P
ri
e
s
th
o
rp
e
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
w
o
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 

o
n
 a
n
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
th
a
t 
s
im
u
la
te
d
 t
h
e
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 o
f 
a
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
. 
 T
h
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 w
e
re
 

to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
’ 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
h
o
w
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

o
p
e
ra
te
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 t
h
e
y
 p
la
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
. 

 

Page 32



C
o
c
a
 C
o
la
 v
is
it
  
 

G
C
S
E
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
tu
d
ie
s
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 W

o
rt
le
y
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
v
is
it
e
d
 C
o
c
a
 C
o
la
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
 i
n
 W

a
k
e
fi
e
ld
. 
 T
h
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 w
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
, 
s
a
le
s
, 
p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
. 

 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 D
a
y
  

B
ri
g
h
t 
F
u
tu
re
s
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 D
y
n
a
m
ic
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 a
n
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
fo
r 
C
ra
w
s
h
a
w
 

H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
. 
T
h
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 w
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
b
le
m
 s
o
lv
in
g
 a
n
d
 

p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
2
0
5
 Y
r 
1
0
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
. 

 S
to
c
k
 M
a
rk
e
t 
C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
  
  

B
ru
n
tc
lif
fe
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
is
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
to
c
k
 M
a
rk
e
t 
C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
fr
o
m
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

0
5
 t
o
 A
p
ri
l 
0
6
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
im
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
2
8
0
 Y
r 
1
0
 

s
tu
d
e
n
ts
. 
 T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
e
n
ta
ils
 t
h
e
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
in
g
 c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 (
a
 v
ir
tu
a
l 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
 o
n
ly
) 
b
u
y
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
e
lli
n
g
 o
f 
s
h
a
re
s
. 
  
  

 ‘N
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r’
 L
it
e
ra
c
y
 &
 I
C
T
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
o
s
t 
N
e
w
s
p
a
p
e
rs
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 E
B
P
 w
o
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 ‘
N
e
w
s
ro
o
m
’ 
a
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
o
s
t 

N
e
w
s
p
a
p
e
rs
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r 
o
n
e
-d
a
y
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 u
s
in
g
 Q
u
a
rk
 E
x
p
re
s
s
 

s
o
ft
w
a
re
 t
o
 w
ri
te
 a
rt
ic
le
s
 f
o
r 
a
 n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r.
  
A
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 e
a
c
h
 s
tu
d
e
n
t 
le
ft
 w
it
h
 

a
 c
o
lo
u
r 
c
o
p
y
 o
f 
a
 4
 p
a
g
e
 n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r.
  
T
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
h
a
t 
to
o
k
 a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
is
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

w
e
re
 W

o
o
d
k
ir
k
, 
W
o
rt
le
y
, 
R
o
u
n
d
h
a
y
, 
P
ri
e
s
th
o
rp
e
, 
L
a
w
n
s
w
o
o
d
, 
S
o
u
th
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 

C
ra
w
s
h
a
w
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

 
 

 
 F
o
re
n
s
ic
 S
c
ie
n
c
e
 W

o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
  

C
S
I 
W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 i
s
 a
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
liv
e
rs
 f
o
re
n
s
ic
 s
c
ie
n
c
e
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 i
n
 H
ig
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

th
a
t 
a
re
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
s
p
ir
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
th
u
s
e
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 a
b
o
u
t 
s
c
ie
n
ti
fi
c
 c
a
re
e
rs
. 
 S
tu
d
e
n
ts
 

le
a
rn
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 r
e
tr
ie
v
a
l 
o
f 
fi
n
g
e
r 
p
ri
n
ts
, 
fo
o
t 
p
ri
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
b
lo
o
d
 s
p
a
tt
e
r 

p
a
tt
e
rn
s
. 
 T
h
e
y
 u
s
e
 t
h
is
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 t
e
a
m
s
 o
n
 a
 c
ri
m
e
 s
c
e
n
e
 w
it
h
 a
 v
ie
w
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
u
lp
ri
t.
  
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 E
B
P
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 7
 L
e
e
d
s
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 

p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 f
o
r 
Y
e
a
r 
1
0
 a
n
d
 Y
r 
1
1
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
. 
 P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
n
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

a
n
d
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 0
6
 w
e
re
 C
it
y
 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
, 
M
o
rl
e
y
, 
T
e
m
p
le
 M
o
o
r,
 A
lle
rt
o
n
, 
H
o
rs
fo
rt
h
, 

Page 33



W
o
o
d
k
ir
k
, 
S
t 
M
a
ry
’s
 M
e
n
s
to
n
 a
n
d
 B
o
s
to
n
 S
p
a
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

 D
u
ri
n
g
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 W

e
e
k
, 
in
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r,
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 b
o
d
ie
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
b
a
s
is
 i
n
v
it
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
ro
m
 a
c
ro
s
s
 W

e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
a
rt
 i
n
 

c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 R
e
a
l 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 s
p
o
n
s
o
re
d
 b
y
 C
o
c
a
 C
o
la
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
. 
 T
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
m
a
n
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 
 

 O
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
a
s
t 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
 D
T
I 
h
a
v
e
 s
p
o
n
s
o
re
d
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 A
d
v
is
e
rs
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

to
 a
d
v
is
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 s
k
ill
s
 b
u
t 
th
is
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 f
in
is
h
 i
n
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
6
. 

 E
L
 E
B
P
 a
ls
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
o
r 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 i
n
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
in
g
 T
e
a
c
h
e
r 

P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
y
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 t
e
a
c
h
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

u
s
e
 o
f 
D
e
b
tc
re
d
, 
th
e
 H
ig
h
 S
h
e
ri
ff
’s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
lit
e
ra
c
y
 p
ro
je
c
t 
a
n
d
 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 F
a
c
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
, 

s
p
o
n
s
o
re
d
 b
y
 R
o
y
a
l 
b
a
n
k
 o
f 
S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
. 
 B
o
th
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
re
 f
re
e
 t
o
 L
e
e
d
s
 

H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 a
re
 a
n
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t 
o
f 
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 

e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
. 
 A
ls
o
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 f
o
r 

te
a
c
h
e
rs
 t
o
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 i
n
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
y
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
T
e
s
c
o
 h
a
v
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
te
a
c
h
e
rs
 w
is
h
in
g
 t
o
 g
a
in
 a
n
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
ta
il 
in
d
u
s
tr
y
. 

 O
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 k
e
y
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
n
c
e
p
ts
 o
f 
'b
e
in
g
 

e
n
te
rp
ri
s
in
g
' 
a
re
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
s
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 

te
a
c
h
. 
 T
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
k
ill
s
 a
re
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 a
 t
e
a
m
, 
le
a
rn
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
ly
 t
o
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 c
re
a
ti
v
e
  
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 p
ro
b
le
m
 

s
o
lv
in
g
. 
A
n
 e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
n
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
. 

 A
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
b
je
c
ts
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
, 
m
a
n
y
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 w
o
rk
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l.
 A
n
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
a
 c
re
a
ti
v
e
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
o
u
rs
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
is
 t
h
e
 B
T
E
C
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
c
o
u
rs
e
 r
u
n
 b
y
 J
o
s
e
p
h
 

P
ri
e
s
tl
e
y
 C
o
lle
g
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
S
o
u
th
 L
e
e
d
s
 C
L
C
 w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 

Page 34



la
p
to
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ie
ld
 t
o
 f
o
llo
w
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
rd
 c
o
u
rs
e
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
. 
  

 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 m

a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 a
re
 t
a
k
e
n
 u
p
 b
y
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 a
re
 d
is
a
ff
e
c
te
d
 w
it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
ra
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
  
w
h
o
 a
re
 d
is
a
ff
e
c
te
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m
. 
 A
n
o
th
e
r 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

th
e
re
fo
re
 i
s
 t
o
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
b
je
c
ts
 f
o
r 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 o
f 
C
/D
 b
o
rd
e
rl
in
e
 a
n
d
 a
b
o
v
e
 

a
b
ili
ty
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 l
e
a
rn
 b
u
t 
n
e
e
d
 a
 m
o
re
 i
n
te
ra
c
ti
v
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 a
 g
re
a
te
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 

e
v
e
ry
d
a
y
 l
iv
e
s
. 
 I
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 n
e
e
d
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 E
B
P
 h
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

fo
r 
th
e
 B
T
E
C
 F
ir
s
t 
D
ip
lo
m
a
 i
n
 R
e
ta
il 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 n
in
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
ta
il 
in
d
u
s
tr
y
, 
th
e
 

S
e
c
to
r 
S
k
ill
s
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 P
a
rk
 L
a
n
e
 C
o
lle
g
e
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
rs
e
 i
s
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 a
t 
P
u
d
s
e
y
 

G
ra
n
g
e
fi
e
ld
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
w
h
e
re
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 a
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 v
is
it
 

c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
ta
il 
in
d
u
s
tr
y
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 l
e
a
rn
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

te
a
c
h
e
r 
a
c
ti
n
g
 a
s
 a
 f
a
c
ili
ta
to
r.
  
S
im
ila
r 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

B
T
E
C
 H
o
s
p
it
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 A
rt
 &
 D
e
s
ig
n
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 s
ta
rt
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
. 

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 E
B
P
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 f
o
r 
v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 T
e
a
c
h
e
r 
P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
  

b
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 w
ill
in
g
 t
o
 c
o
lla
b
o
ra
te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
la
s
s
ro
o
m
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 i
s
 a
 c
a
s
e
 s
tu
d
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 R
h
o
d
ia
 U
K
 L
td
, 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
h
e
m
ic
a
l 
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
. 
 

C
re
a
te
d
 b
y
 t
w
o
 L
e
e
d
s
 s
c
ie
n
c
e
 t
e
a
c
h
e
rs
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 i
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

te
a
c
h
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 A
p
p
lie
d
 S
c
ie
n
c
e
 G
C
S
E
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
e
s
 a
 D
V
D
 w
it
h
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 h
is
to
ry
, 
p
ro
d
u
c
ts
 a
n
d
 H
&
S
 r
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
. 
 I
t 
a
ls
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 p
ri
n
te
d
 c
o
p
ie
s
 o
f 

a
c
tu
a
l 
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 H
&
S
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
, 
ri
s
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
, 
H
&
S
 P
o
lic
y
, 

C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 T
ra
in
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
, 
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
, 
jo
b
 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

  L
e
e
d
s
 h
a
s
 a
 v
e
ry
 w
e
ll 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 V
o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
O
ff
e
r 
th
a
t 
is
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 a
ll 

1
4
-1
6
 Y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 
A
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
; 
 F
E
 C
o
lle
g
e
s
, 
w
o
rk
-b
a
s
e
d
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
, 
C
it
y
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
L
C
C
 J
o
b
s
 &
 S
k
ill
s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
c
to
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 
 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
ro
u
n
d
 2
,5
0
0
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
0
 a
n
d
 1
1
 s
p
e
n
d
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
o
n
e
 d
a
y
 p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 a
 v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

Page 35



o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l,
 s
tu
d
y
in
g
 f
o
r 
o
n
e
 o
r 
m
o
re
 o
f 
n
e
a
rl
y
 1
0
0
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

S
e
v
e
ra
l 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
n
g
 A
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 a
n
d
 

J
o
b
 G
u
a
ra
n
te
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
a
ll 
th
e
 v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 

c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
  
1
4
-1
6
 w
e
b
-b
a
s
e
d
 p
ro
s
p
e
c
tu
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t 

w
w
w
.v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
lle
a
rn
in
g
le
e
d
s
.o
rg
 

 T
h
e
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
e
a
m
 w
it
h
in
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

g
ra
n
t 
fo
rm

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 S
k
ill
s
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 a
re
 d
ri
v
in
g
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

q
 
D
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
 a
ll 
h
ig
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m
  

q
 
A
n
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 F
o
ru
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 t
o
 w
h
ic
h
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 C
o
o
rd
in
a
to
rs
 i
n
 a
ll 

h
ig
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
re
 i
n
v
it
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 m
e
e
ts
 e
a
c
h
 t
e
rm

 a
n
d
 o
ff
e
rs
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
is
s
e
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
id
e
a
s
. 

q
 
W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 

e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 ‘
P
ro
je
c
t 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
’ 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 i
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

q
 
In
d
iv
id
u
a
l,
 c
it
y
 w
id
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 f
o
r 
h
ig
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 e
.g
. 
R
e
a
l 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 w
it
h
 

C
o
c
a
 C
o
la
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 F
la
t 
P
a
c
k
 C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 w
it
h
 I
K
E
A
; 
R
o
ta
ry
 C
lu
b
 

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
. 

q
 
F
iv
e
 d
a
y
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
in
g
 a
 w
h
o
le
 y
e
a
r 
g
ro
u
p
 (
Y
7
 &
 Y
9
) 
a
n
d
 a
ll 
c
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m
 

a
re
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
, 
p
ro
d
u
c
in
g
 a
n
d
 m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 a
 n
e
w
 p
ro
d
u
c
t 
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
.g
 C
a
n
d
y
 

C
o
m
p
a
n
y
, 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 f
o
r 
B
ri
ti
s
h
 L
e
g
io
n
. 

q
 
M
in
i 
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
S
E
N
 g
ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 J
o
h
n
 S
m
e
a
to
n
 

H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

q
 
T
e
a
c
h
e
r 
P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
d
a
y
s
 i
n
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
y
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 c
la
s
s
ro
o
m
 b
a
s
e
d
 c
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 e
.g
. 
v
is
it
 t
o
 

c
h
e
m
ic
a
l 
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
s
c
ie
n
c
e
. 
 V
is
it
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 i
n
p
u
t 
o
n
 h
o
w
 

p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 o
f 
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
to
 c
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m
. 

Page 36



q
 
J
u
s
t 
T
h
e
 J
o
b
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 Y
6
 c
h
ild
re
n
 f
ro
m
 1
5
 i
n
n
e
r 
c
it
y
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

to
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 i
n
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
le
s
s
o
n
s
 e
x
p
la
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
o
rl
d
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 b
y
 v
is
it
s
 

to
 t
w
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
s
 4
5
 c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 a
n
d
 7
0
0
 c
h
ild
re
n
. 

T
h
e
 L
E
G
I 
fu
n
d
in
g
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 a
w
a
rd
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 o
n
 

th
is
 f
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
, 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r,
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
o
u
r 

m
o
s
t 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a
re
a
s
. 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 2
0
 

 T
h
a
t 
a
s
 a
n
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 w
e
 a
re
 

ro
b
u
s
t 
in
 o
u
r 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 a
re
 q
u
ic
k
ly
 p
u
t 
in
 

p
la
c
e
. 
 

W
e
 a
ls
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 

A
lc
o
h
o
l 
M
is
u
s
e
 E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

C
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
, 

d
e
ta
il
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn
t.
 

 

L
e
g
a
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 o
n
ly
 t
im
e
 w
h
e
n
 a
n
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 c
o
m
e
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 l
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
s
 i
f 
th
e
 

a
p
p
lic
a
n
t 
h
a
s
 a
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 o
b
je
c
t.
  
In
 s
u
c
h
 i
n
s
ta
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

h
a
s
 t
w
o
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 -
 r
e
je
c
t 
o
r 
g
ra
n
t 
th
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
 A
c
t 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
p
p
e
a
r 
to
 a
llo
w
 f
o
r 

th
e
 g
ra
n
t 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
. 

 W
h
e
re
 a
n
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
lic
e
n
c
e
 h
o
ld
e
r 
is
 c
o
n
v
ic
te
d
 f
o
r 
a
 `
re
le
v
a
n
t 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
' b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

M
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
, 
h
e
 i
s
 d
u
ty
 b
o
u
n
d
 t
o
 a
d
v
is
e
 t
h
e
 M
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 h
o
ld
e
r 
o
f 
a
 

P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
L
ic
e
n
c
e
. 
 I
n
 t
h
is
 i
n
s
ta
n
c
e
 i
t 
is
 t
h
e
 M
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 w
h
o
 d
e
c
id
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
n
a
lt
y
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
p
p
lie
d
 -
 r
e
v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
r 
s
u
s
p
e
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
lic
e
n
c
e
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
  
J
u
n
e
 0
7
 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
to
c
o
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 A
c
t 
2
0
0
3
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o
f 
a
ll 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 h
e
ld
 

o
n
 a
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
 I
n
fo
 s
h
a
re
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
b
le
m
 p
re
m
is
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
 J
o
in
t 
v
is
it
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

L
C
C
 E
n
te
rt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 W

e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
o
lic
e
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

re
s
u
lt
s
. 
  

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 2
1
 

 
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 a
n
 

in
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 o
f 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
re
c
e
iv
e
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
) 
o
n
 

 
T
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 c
e
a
s
e
d
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 l
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 a
s
p
e
c
t 
fa
lls
 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 r
e
m
it
 o
f 
O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
. 
  

Page 37



e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 f
o
r 

li
c
e
n
c
e
s
. 
  

 R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 2
2
 

 
T
h
a
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
h
o
w
 ‘
g
o
o
d
 n
e
w
s
’ 

p
re
s
s
 r
e
le
a
s
e
s
 c
a
n
 

e
m
p
h
a
s
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
 b
y
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

 

  N
H
D
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 0
7
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
ll 
p
o
s
it
iv
e
 s
to
ri
e
s
 a
s
 g
o
o
d
 n
e
w
s
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 t
o
 l
in
k
 w
it
h
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
o
f 
s
u
c
h
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

W
o
rk
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 t
o
 l
in
k
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 l
in
k
s
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
. 
A
n
 e
v
e
n
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
m
 a
w
a
re
 

o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 b
e
in
g
 d
o
n
e
 t
o
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 A
S
B
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 o
ft
e
n
 

v
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 
a
s
b
 a
n
d
 m
e
th
o
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 a
v
o
id
 v
ic
ti
m
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
r 
h
o
w
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

in
c
id
e
n
ts
. 
 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 2
3
 

 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 s
tu
d
y
 b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
p
p
ly
 i
t 
to
 t
h
is
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
’s
 o
w
n
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 

ta
c
k
li
n
g
 a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 

 

 N
H
D
 

   U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 0
7
 

W
o
rk
 o
n
 g
o
in
g
. 
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
R
e
s
p
e
c
t 
p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 f
o
ru
m
 i
s
 n
o
w
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
. 

A
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
e
v
e
n
t 
is
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 1
3
th
 J
u
ly
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 f
o
r 
P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 b
y
 R
T
F
 

a
n
d
 L
e
e
d
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 a
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 A
S
B
 i
n
 

th
e
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
S
ta
ff
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l/
re
g
io
n
a
l 
e
v
e
n
ts
 t
o
 s
tu
d
y
 b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 S
L
C
N
G
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 i
n
 B
ir
m
in
g
h
a
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 i
n
 S
h
e
ff
ie
ld
. 
 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 2
4
 

 
W
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

w
h
e
re
v
e
r 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 a
 h
ig
h
e
r 

p
ro
fi
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 Y
o
u
th
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 i
ts
e
lf
 s
e
e
k
s
 c
re
a
ti
v
e
 

w
a
y
s
 o
f 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 m

o
re
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

a
n
d
 L
e
is
u
re
 

  U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 0
7
 

 T
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 Y
o
u
th
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
(L
Y
C
) 
a
re
 p
re
p
a
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 
th
is
 y
e
a
r’
s
 e
le
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
 Y
o
u
th
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w
it
h
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 b
y
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 m
o
re
 t
im
e
 i
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 p
u
p
ils
. 
 S
ta
ff
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
o
 b
e
 a
n
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
in
 

Page 38



w
id
e
ly
 t
h
e
 v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
, 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 

o
f 
a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 

 

th
e
ir
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
w
h
e
re
 a
ll
 p
u
p
il
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 “
H
a
v
e
 a
 S
a
y
” 
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ff
e
c
t 

th
e
ir
 l
iv
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 j
u
s
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 s
c
h
o
o
l.
  
E
a
c
h
 

H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
h
a
s
 t
w
o
 p
la
c
e
s
 p
lu
s
 o
n
e
  
re
s
e
rv
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 L
Y
C
. 
 T
h
is
 f
o
rm

s
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 
th
e
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 f
o
r 
th
e
 L
Y
C
. 

 L
e
e
d
s
 a
ls
o
 h
a
s
 4
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 U
K
 Y
o
u
th
 P
a
rl
ia
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
w
o
 D
e
p
u
ty
 M
Y
P
s
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

e
le
c
te
d
 f
ro
m
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 L
Y
C
. 

T
h
is
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 L
Y
C
 a
n
d
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
s
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
h
a
t 
is
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 

a
 V
o
ic
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 o
n
e
 

g
ro
u
p
. 

O
u
r 
M
Y
P
s
 a
re
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
w
e
d
g
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 Y
o
u
th
 P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 F
o
ru
m
s
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
, 
g
iv
in
g
 o
th
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
Y
C
. 
 A
n
o
th
e
r 
M
Y
P
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
a
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 w
h
ic
h
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 h
e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
ro
u
n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
ro
u
n
d
 A
S
B
O
S
. 

 L
Y
C
 a
re
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
 a
s
 m

a
n
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 

o
v
e
r 
th
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
h
o
lid
a
y
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 B
re
e
z
e
 o
n
 T
o
u
r 
e
v
e
n
ts
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 
 

T
h
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
c
e
n
tr
a
ti
n
g
 o
n
 t
h
re
e
 m
a
in
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
k
in
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 v
ie
w
s
 o
n
 

T
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
r,
 t
o
 s
ig
n
 a
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
o
u
r 
re
c
e
n
t 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

In
q
u
ir
y
 f
o
r 
F
R
E
E
 b
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
3
 t
h
in
g
s
 w
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

th
e
ir
 l
iv
e
s
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
?
 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 2
5
 

 
W
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
b
o
d
ie
s
, 

(p
u
b
li
c
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
) 

w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
  
s
h
o
u
ld
 l
o
o
k
 f
o
r 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

in
v
o
lv
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
ro
je
c
ts
, 
w
h
ic
h
 

a
ll
o
w
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 

D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
n
e
 0
7
 

 A
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 F
o
ru
m
 u
n
d
e
rt
o
o
k
 a
n
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 a
u
s
p
ic
e
s
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 m
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
y
e
a
r.
  
 T
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
 

fi
n
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
ts
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
. 
  
It
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 

ty
p
e
 o
f 
fo
ru
m
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
h
is
 m
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
y
e
a
r.
  
 

Page 39



d
if
fe
re
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 W

e
 a
ls
o
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

in
 t
h
e
 d
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

w
o
rk
 o
f 
A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
. 

 

 
 

   
 

Page 40



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
) 

 
In
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 2
0
0
5
/0
6
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

  R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
 

 T
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 t
a
k
e
s
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 m

o
v
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

u
n
d
e
r 
o
c
c
u
p
y
in
g
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
, 

a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 t
h
a
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

in
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 
A
L
M
O
s
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 

p
o
li
c
y
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
ly
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
. 

 

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
b
a
te
s
 h
e
ld
 a
t 
th
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
, 
a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 L
e
tt
in
g
s
 P
o
lic
y
 w
a
s
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
6
. 
 I
t 
s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
in
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
o
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 h
o
m
e
s
 w
h
o
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
o
c
c
u
p
y
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
m
e
s
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
. 
 

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

•
 
a
w
a
rd
in
g
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 E
x
tr
a
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
; 

•
 
g
re
a
te
r 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 A
L
M
O
 s
ta
ff
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 m
o
v
in
g
; 
 

•
 
A
llo
w
in
g
 A
L
M
O
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
m
a
k
in
g
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

m
o
v
e
. 

T
h
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 g
iv
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 A
L
M
O
s
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 

u
n
d
e
r 
o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
te
n
a
n
ts
 m
o
v
in
g
 t
o
 s
m
a
lle
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 r
o
s
e
 f
ro
m
 6
3
 i
n
 

2
0
0
4
/5
 t
o
 1
7
5
 i
n
 2
0
0
5
/6
. 
 T
h
is
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
s
 p
a
rt
ly
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 

L
e
tt
in
g
s
 P
o
lic
y
, 
a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ly
 t
o
 r
e
h
o
u
s
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 d
is
p
la
c
e
d
 b
y
 c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
. 
 I
n
 

th
e
s
e
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
, 
m
a
n
y
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
re
 l
e
t 
h
o
m
e
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
, 

a
n
d
 r
e
h
o
u
s
e
d
 i
n
 s
m
a
lle
r 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 
  
 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 2
 

 T
h
a
t 
m
u
tu
a
l 
e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 m

a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
 a
n
d
 A
L
M
O
s
. 

 

 M
u
tu
a
l 
E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 w
e
e
k
ly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 H
o
m
e
s
 f
ly
e
r 
a
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 H
o
m
e
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 s
in
c
e
 2
0
0
5
. 
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
s
 a
ls
o
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
 

th
e
ir
 m
u
tu
a
l 
e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 L
e
e
d
s
 H
o
m
e
s
. 
  
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 

 N
o
.o
f 
e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
5
 y
e
a
rs
; 

 

Page 41



  
 

2
0
0
2
/0
3

2
0
0
3
/0
4

2
0
0
4
/0
5

2
0
0
5
/0
6

2
0
0
6
/0
7

4
2
0

3
4
7

3
2
1

2
6
6

3
0
3

 
 C
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 H
o
m
e
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
v
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
n
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
s
in
c
e
 M
a
y
 2
0
0
7
 d
u
e
 t
o
 a
n
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
m
o
re
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
 m

a
tc
h
e
s
 

e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 s
iz
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
la
n
n
e
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
in
g
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
lu
d
e
; 

  

•
 
C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 t
e
n
a
n
t 
e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
o
n
-l
in
e
 a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 

H
o
m
e
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 A
rc
h
o
u
s
e
 P
lu
s
 r
o
llo
u
t 
in
 O
rc
h
a
rd
 

•
 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 o
n
 A
L
M
O
 w
e
b
s
it
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p
e
ri
o
d
ic
a
l 

te
n
a
n
ts
 n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
rs
 

•
 
P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 b
y
 L
e
e
d
s
 H
o
m
e
s
 T
e
a
m
 t
o
 c
o
in
c
id
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ri
n
t 

ru
n
 o
f 
e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
rm

s
 

•
 
M
a
tc
h
in
g
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 b
y
 A
L
M
O
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
  

•
 
T
ra
in
in
g
 t
o
 A
L
M
O
 s
ta
ff
  
  
 -
  
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
IT
 b
y
 A
L
M
O
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 
 l
e
g
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
  
 

 

 R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 3
 

 T
h
a
t 
th
e
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

R
e
g
is
te
re
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
L
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 t
o
 

a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 l
e
tt
in
g
s
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

 

  L
e
e
d
s
 F
e
d
e
ra
te
d
 H
A
 a
n
d
 U
n
it
y
 H
A
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
 a
lm
o
s
t 
a
ll 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 H
o
m
e
s
 c
h
o
ic
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 l
e
tt
in
g
s
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 
 I
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 1
-3
 o
f 
2
0
0
6
/7
, 
R
e
g
is
te
re
d
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
L
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 (
R
S
L
s
) 
a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 1
3
1
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 
N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
it
h
 1
0
 

o
th
e
r 
R
S
L
s
 t
o
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 4
 

 

Page 42



 T
h
a
t 
th
e
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
s
 

s
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
li
n
k
s
 w
it
h
 R
S
L
s
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 

in
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
in
g
 n
o
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
re
-l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
n
o
m
in
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
 b
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 n
e
w
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
. 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 m
e
e
t 
e
a
c
h
 R
S
L
 m
o
n
th
ly
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 n
o
m
in
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
 G
ro
u
p
 m
o
n
it
o
rs
 t
h
is
. 

 A
ll 
R
S
L
s
 a
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 s
ig
n
 a
n
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 l
e
t 
a
 m

in
im
u
m
 o
f 

5
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 t
o
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
n
o
m
in
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 1
9
 R
S
L
s
 h
a
v
e
 s
ig
n
e
d
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
, 

c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 8
5
%
 o
f 
R
S
L
 s
to
c
k
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 5
 

 T
h
a
t 
a
 p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 
th
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
g
is
te
r 

is
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 f
in
d
 t
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 

ti
m
e
 a
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
w
a
it
s
 f
o
r 
re
h
o
u
s
in
g
, 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
iz
e
s
 o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 w
h
o
 n
e
e
d
 

re
h
o
u
s
in
g
. 

 

  S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 L
a
n
d
lo
rd
 g
ro
u
p
 c
a
n
 n
o
w
 g
iv
e
 A
L
M
O
s
 t
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
ti
m
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

re
h
o
u
s
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 b
y
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 b
a
n
d
, 
a
n
d
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

a
ls
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
fu
l 
fo
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
, 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 o
n
 w
h
e
re
 t
o
 

b
id
 f
o
r 
a
 h
o
m
e
. 

 In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
re
p
o
rt
s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 g
iv
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
w
a
it
 b
y
 e
th
n
ic
it
y
 a
n
d
 

a
g
e
. 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 6
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 T
a
s
k
 

G
ro
u
p
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
s
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
s
 

n
o
te
 o
f 
k
e
y
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 b
e
in
g
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
. 

 

 T
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 T
a
s
k
 G
ro
u
p
, 

s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
. 
 T
h
is
 g
a
v
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
rs
. 

 T
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
rk
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 (
b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
u
id
e
lin
e
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t)
, 
is
 n
e
a
ri
n
g
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
. 
 I
t 
w
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
ru
le
s
 b
y
 O
u
ts
id
e
 U
K
. 
 S
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
in
 2
0
0
3
, 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
m
e
s
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 y
e
a
r 
b
y
 y
e
a
r 
b
a
s
is
 f
ro
m
 4
8
0
 t
o
 1
8
8
9
 u
n
it
s
. 
 

T
h
e
s
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
, 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
, 
h
a
v
e
 y
e
t 
to
 b
e
 f
o
rm

a
lly
 a
g
re
e
d
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 

it
 i
s
 u
n
lik
e
ly
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
ig
u
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 l
o
w
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
is
, 
g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 o
n
 a
ll 

Page 43



s
e
c
to
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 m
a
rk
e
t.
 

 R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 b
e
in
g
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
to
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 w
h
y
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
re
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
ly
 

s
e
e
in
g
 s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
s
 a
 r
o
u
te
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 m

a
rk
e
t.
  
T
h
e
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
, 
w
h
ic
h
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
 2
0
0
7
, 
s
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
n
e
w
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

w
is
h
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
h
o
u
s
e
d
 t
o
 s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
, 
o
r 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 a
 

c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
to
c
k
 d
u
e
 t
o
 r
ig
h
t 
to
 b
u
y
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
to
c
k
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
. 

 B
o
th
 t
h
e
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
N
e
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 a
re
 f
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
to
 t
h
e
 A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
la
n
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
  

H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
rk
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

T
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 a
s
 a
 k
e
y
 C
it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
li
v
e
r 
a
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
1
8
8
9
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
n
 a
 y
e
a
r-
o
n
-y
e
a
r 
b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
fi
ft
e
e
n
 y
e
a
rs
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
 

  In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
th
is
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 a
re
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 

w
it
h
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
  
fr
o
m
 t
h
is
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
  
a
n
d
  
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
  
 

re
g
io
n
a
l 
a
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t 
u
p
w
a
rd
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 

fi
g
u
re
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
S
p
a
ti
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 w
il
l 
b
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 m

a
rk
e
ts
 

 D
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
S
o
c
ia
l 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

T
h
e
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
d
ra
ft
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 a
re
 n
o
w
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 

w
it
h
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
. 
 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 7
 

 
T
h
e
 A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
la
n
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 s
e
t 
 

O
u
t 
a
 b
ro
a
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

Page 44



T
h
a
t 
c
le
a
r 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 i
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
, 
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
n
k
s
, 
a
n
d
 

g
iv
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

d
is
p
la
c
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
. 

 

h
o
u
s
in
g
. 
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
is
e
d
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 T
h
e
y
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 n
e
w
 a
n
d
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 m
e
t 
in
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
lo
c
a
l 

n
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 m
e
t.
 

 W
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 o
n
 s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 d
e
c
a
n
ti
n
g
 s
e
c
u
re
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
  
to
 s
e
e
 h
o
w
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 e
it
h
e
r 

b
y
 p
u
b
lic
 o
r 
p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
, 
c
a
n
 a
s
s
is
t 
w
it
h
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 

re
h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 d
is
p
la
c
e
d
. 

 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

F
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 o
f 
th
e
 

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 P
la
n
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
 w
a
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
7
 

th
a
t 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

th
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
s
e
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 
 A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 g
iv
e
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
7
7
 

a
c
re
s
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 o
w
n
e
d
 l
a
n
d
 t
o
 b
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
 T
h
is
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o
 c
re
a
te
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 

c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
in
g
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
rk
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 

  T
h
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
b
e
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
A
n
d
re
w
 C
a
rt
e
r.
  
T
h
e
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
in
c
lu
d
e
 k
e
y
 p
la
y
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

C
h
ie
f 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
n
d
 C
h
ie
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 o
f 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 

H
u
m
b
e
r,
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 C
o
rp
o
ra
ti
o
n
, 
E
n
g
li
s
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
th
e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 w
il
l 
ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 e
it
h
e
r 
la
te
 J
u
ly
 

o
r 
e
a
rl
y
 A
u
g
u
s
t.
 

  

 S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

 
 T
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
rk
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 i
n
fo
rm

 a
n
d
 a
d
v
is
e
 o
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

n
e
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
te
n
u
re
s
. 
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

Page 45



a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
e
 m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
. 
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 w
o
rk
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w
it
h
 R
S
L
s
, 
w
h
o
 w
ill
 

b
e
 e
it
h
e
r 
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 o
r 
m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
, 
ta
k
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t.
 

 T
h
e
 p
u
b
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
  
P
P
S
3
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
rk
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 

in
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 w
il
l 
b
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
1
8
 m

o
n
th
s
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

  A
s
 t
h
e
 S
P
D
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
fo
rm

s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 a
 f
o
rm

a
l 
ti
m
e
ta
b
le
 

fo
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
. 

            

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 9
 

 T
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 

re
c
e
iv
e
s
 a
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

G
o
ld
e
n
 T
ri
a
n
g
le
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

  R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
0
 

 T
h
a
t 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 B
V
P
I 

 A
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 o
f 
th
e
 G
o
ld
e
n
 T
ri
a
n
g
le
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 b
o
a
rd
 i
n
 M
a
y
 2
0
0
7
. 
 

 A
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 b
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

    T
h
e
 E
m
p
ty
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 a
n
d
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 t
o
 c
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 2
0
0
6
 

Page 46



6
4
 i
s
 h
ig
h
 e
n
o
u
g
h
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
it
 

d
ri
v
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

 

–
 2
0
1
0
, 
a
n
d
 s
tr
e
tc
h
e
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 w
e
re
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
t 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 o
n
 

1
5
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
. 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
1
 

 T
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
rs
 f
u
tu
re
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 E
m
p
ty
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 T
e
a
m
. 

 

  E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
te
n
d
 t
o
 a
p
p
ly
 f
o
r 
a
n
 e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 N
R
F
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 E
m
p
ty
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 T
e
a
m
 o
v
e
r 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
. 
 T
h
e
y
 w
ill
 s
u
b
m
it
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
b
id
 f
o
r 

a
n
o
th
e
r 
E
H
O
 p
o
s
t 
to
 h
e
lp
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
re
a
s
 a
t 
C
ro
s
s
 G
re
e
n
, 
E
a
s
t 
E
n
d
 P
a
rk
, 
H
a
re
h
ill
s
, 
C
h
a
p
e
lt
o
w
n
, 

B
e
e
s
to
n
 a
n
d
 H
o
lb
e
c
k
. 
 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
b
o
u
t 
re
la
x
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
, 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 

w
o
rk
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
ra
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
tu
d
e
n
t 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
H
e
a
d
in
g
le
y
, 
H
y
d
e
 P
a
rk
, 

M
e
a
n
w
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 K
ir
k
s
ta
ll,
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 t
o
 s
h
o
w
 s
ig
n
s
 o
f 
u
n
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 i
n
 t
h
is
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
n
ic
h
e
 o
f 
th
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 m
a
rk
e
t.
 

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
ll
y
 a
p
p
li
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
n
 e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 N
R
F
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 E
m
p
ty
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 T
e
a
m
 o
v
e
r 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 b
id
 f
o
r 

a
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
E
H
O
 p
o
s
t 
to
 h
e
lp
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 

p
la
n
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
re
a
s
 a
t 
C
ro
s
s
 G
re
e
n
, 
E
a
s
t 
E
n
d
 P
a
rk
, 
H
a
re
h
il
ls
, 

C
h
a
p
e
lt
o
w
n
, 
B
e
e
s
to
n
 a
n
d
 H
o
lb
e
c
k
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
fo
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
. 
  

 A
 r
e
p
o
rt
 /
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
ra
ft
e
d
 f
o
r 
D
M
T
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 
W
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

re
p
o
rt
 i
t 
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 E
m
p
ty
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 T
e
a
m
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 a
s
 a
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
it
y
 w
id
e
 r
e
m
it
 i
n
s
te
a
d
 o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 a
re
a
s
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
ls
o
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 t
e
a
m
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t’
s
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
s
ta
ff
in
g
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

th
e
re
b
y
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 v
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 t
h
e
y
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 c
it
y
 a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 
fu
tu
re
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
u
p
o
n
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

re
g
im

e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 N
R
F
. 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 1
2
 

 

Page 47



 T
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
re
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
rk
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
n
c
e
 t
h
is
 

is
 c
o
m
p
le
te
. 

 A
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
rk
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 b
o
a
rd
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
. 

D
u
e
 t
o
 a
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
, 
it
 i
s
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
il
l 
b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
  
in
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
. 

 

 

Page 48



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods) 
 
Date:   25th July 2007 
 
Subject:  Inquiry into Regeneration in Beeston Hill and Holbeck – Formal  
  Responses to Recommendations 
 

        
 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1   During the last municipal year, Scrutiny Board (Neighbourhoods and Housing) 

undertook an inquiry into the regeneration activity being undertaken in Beeston Hill 
and Holbeck.  The basis of this inquiry was to discuss the principles of regeneration 
using a specific area as an example of how the Council and external partners can 
regenerate an area physically and economically. 

 
1.2   Part of the process of completing an inquiry and publishing recommendations 

includes receiving a formal response from the department or relevant body to the 
recommendations made.  This may also include an update on actions already taken.   

 
1.3   Attached to this report are the formal responses provided by the department.  

Members of this board have previously received a copy of the final report as 
background information.   

 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Board is requested to note the responses provided. 

 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: S Winfield 
 

Tel:247 4707 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Board (Neighbourhoods and Housing) 
 

Inquiry into Regeneration in Beeston Hill and Holbeck:  
Response to Recommendations  

 

Recommendation 
 

Response from department 

Recommendation 1:   
Shaftesbury House be used as a flagship 
for promoting the regeneration of the 
area. 
 

We agree that the development of 
Shaftesbury House, as it is currently 
proposed by the developer, represents 
an excellent opportunity for the area, 
especially in terms of the carbon 
negative aspects, which are subject in 
particular to agreement on the location of 
a wind turbine. We do feel that 
opportunities should be taken to market 
some of the remaining units that have not 
been sold to local people in order to 
encourage greater local ownership of the 
development. We will build on our 
existing relationship with the developer to 
try to bring this about. 

Recommendation 2: 
That clear and regular communication is 
offered to residents currently not included 
in regeneration projects in order to keep 
them informed of progress and the likely 
timescale of future schemes and that the 
strategy for achieving this is reported 
back to the Board. 
 

We agree. We have completed the 
Holbeck Regeneration Plan and will be 
reporting back to residents on this. We 
are also currently undertaking 
consultation on the details of the Outline 
Business Case for the Housing PFI 
scheme, and later in the year will be 
consulting with residents about the 
Beeston Hill and West Hunslet 
Regeneration Plan. Subject to the 
availability of funding regular newsletters 
will continue and, as and when 
appropriate, further communication will 
take place and officers will continue to 
attend forums. 

Recommendation 3: 
That the department report back to the 
Board outlining the benefits and risks of 
extending the licensing scheme to all 
private landlords. 
 

Yes we will report back to the Board in 
due course once the business case and 
consultation with stakeholders have been 
completed. 

Recommendation 4: 
That the Regeneration Board make shop 
fronts a priority (where this has not 
already been done) and that such 
schemes include wider factors such as 
traffic and environmental improvements 
 

Traffic improvements (in Holbeck) are 
currently on site and various 
environmental improvements are being 
delivered through the Intensive 
Neighbourhood Management 
Programme and the efforts of other 
groups and organisations. Improved 

Page 51



shop fronts are important but they are 
difficult to deliver given that the Council is 
not a major owner of such property and 
funding will need to be identified to 
delivery these type of benefits. One 
opportunity that may present itself is for  
any future agreement with developers 
about broader regeneration benefits to 
include this issue, where appropriate.  

Recommendation 5: 
That consideration is given to the 
appropriate development of the Matthew 
Murray school site.  We recommend that 
the primary consideration should be the 
development of affordable housing. 
 

Residential use will be proposed for the 
Matthew Murray site and affordable 
housing will be a significant proportion of 
this development, however there is a 
need to provide a mix of housing rather 
than simply one type of tenure, so it is 
likely that larger family housing for sale 
will also be provided on what is the 
largest site that we have in the area for 
this type of development. It is important 
that a large site like Matthew Murray 
provides a range of property types as 
part of the residential offer and that any 
such development fits with and supports 
the housing needs of the wider housing 
market for this part of South Leeds. 

Recommendation 6: 
That wherever possible, local businesses 
within the regeneration area are 
employed to undertake regeneration 
activities. 
 

If the definition of “employed” is 
“engaged with” then this is an area where 
we are becoming increasingly active. 
This applies not only to local businesses 
but to developers and larger companies 
who are, for instance through the Leeds 
AHEAD scheme, supporting work with 
voluntary and community groups. In 
addition, through the Leeds Community 
Foundation, we have established, with 
the support of local businesses, a grant 
fund for LS11 for groups to obtain 
funding. In terms of strictly employing 
local businesses then this will be through 
standard procurement processes, 
however we can certainly highlight 
opportunities for local businesses to get 
involved. We also hope that the local  
voluntary sector will become more 
involved in bidding for public sector 
contracts. 

Recommendation 7: 
That the Regeneration Partnership 
Manager is proactive in promoting Social 
Enterprise support in Beeston Hill and 

The support of social enterprises within 
the Beeston Hill and Holbeck Area is a 
responsibility that falls on a number of 
organisations. The Regeneration 

Page 52



Holbeck with the aim of increasing the 
number of social enterprise businesses 
being supported specifically in this area 
 

Partnership Team provides support 
through its ‘Sustainable Futures Project’, 
whilst the Area Management and Area 
Regeneration teams provide support 
directly and also through their specialised 
‘South and West Leeds Community 
Capacity Building Project’. These 
projects have provided considerable 
support to the development of social 
enterprises within the area. Unfortunately 
both these projects are dependent upon 
time limited European funding. 
The link with LEGI and the anticipated 
development of a catalyst centre in the 
heart of the area on Beeston Road will 
also enable structures to be in place that 
encourage businesses and 
entrepreneurship to get established.  

Recommendation 8: 
That the department ensures that 
lessons from previous consultation 
exercises are applied to the ongoing 
communication and consultation within 
Beeston Hill and Holbeck. 
 

See response to recommendation 2. 

Recommendation 9: 
Having emphasised the continued 
importance of Government financial 
support, we also wish to urge the 
Regeneration Board to continue with 
those activities that are still viable and to 
begin to seek contingency arrangements 
should future PFI credits not be 
forthcoming 
 

The work to develop a South Leeds 
Regeneration Area, which will be 
supported through the use of Council 
land and assets as a key plank of a 
partnership with the private sector, will be 
the option to use if the PFI  scheme does 
not provide credits as hoped for. If the 
PFI bid is successful then this type of 
approach will still be adopted. Other 
developments such as independent 
private sector interest will also continue 
to be encouraged where appropriate. 

Recommendation 10: 
That the appropriate Scrutiny Board 
receives six monthly updates on the 
status of the funding streams on which 
the current level of regeneration activity 
depends 
 

Updates can be given on the major 
issues such as progress with the PFI bid 
and the outcome of bids to the Regional 
Housing Board. Also important will be the 
future of funding streams such as the 
Neighbourhood Renewal Fund, which 
currently funds the work of various staff 
within the area. 

 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny Support and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods) 
 
Date:   25th July  2007 
 
Subject:  Work Programme 
 

        
 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The attached appendix provides Members with a copy of the Board’s current Work 

Programme (Appendix 1).  
 
1.2 At appendix 2 is the Forward Plan for July to October 2007. 
 
 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Board is requested to: 

 
(i) Determine any additional items for the Work Programme. 
 
(ii) Receive and make any changes to the attached Work Programme following 

decisions made at today’s meeting. 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Ethnic minorities 
  
Women 
 
Disabled people  
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  All 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ward Members consulted 
  (referred to in report) 

 

 

 

Originator: S Winfield  
Tel: 24 74707   

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 N
E
IG
H
B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
S
) 
W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
J
U
L
Y
) 
2
0
0
7
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

it
e
m
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

b
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 w
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 e
v
e
ry
 t
h
re
e
 m
o
n
th
s
. 

P
M
 

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
. 

 
P
M
 

W
a
s
te
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

W
a
s
te
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 w
it
h
 a
 v
ie
w
 t
o
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 p
o
lic
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 
D
P
 /
 R
P
 

B
u
lk
y
 W

a
s
te
 C
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

p
o
s
it
io
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 
B
 

T
e
rm
s
 o
f 
R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
in
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 r
o
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
lim

a
te
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 

 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
  

 
D
P
 /
 R
P
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 N
e
e
d
s
 P
o
s
it
io
n
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 

T
h
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 l
in
k
s
 i
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 

th
e
 A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 

s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 i
n
 J
u
ly
. 

 
M
S
R
 /
 R
P
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
C
le
a
n
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
le
a
n
e
s
t 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 

 
P
M
 

Page 57



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 N
E
IG
H
B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
S
) 
W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
J
U
L
Y
) 
2
0
0
7
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

C
it
y
 A
w
a
rd
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 

B
ri
ta
in
’s
 C
le
a
n
e
s
t 
C
it
y
 

V
o
id
s
 a
n
d
 E
m
p
ty
 P
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 E
m
p
ty
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

v
o
id
 l
e
v
e
ls
 

 
P
M
 /
 R
P
 

S
e
s
s
io
n
 1
 o
f 
C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

b
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 w
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 e
v
e
ry
 t
h
re
e
 m
o
n
th
s
. 

P
M
 

S
e
s
s
io
n
 2
 o
f 
C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 

S
e
s
s
io
n
 3
 o
f 
C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 

S
e
s
s
io
n
 4
 o
f 
C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 58



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 N
E
IG
H
B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
S
) 
W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
J
U
L
Y
) 
2
0
0
7
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

b
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 w
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 e
v
e
ry
 t
h
re
e
 m
o
n
th
s
. 

P
M
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

U
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 I
te
m
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
s
 

 
W
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 u
p
d
a
te
 

D
a
te
s
 o
f 

Page 59



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 N
E
IG
H
B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
S
) 
W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
J
U
L
Y
) 
2
0
0
7
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 60



L
E

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

 
F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 P

L
A

N
 O

F
 K

E
Y
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 
F
o
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 1
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 t
o
 3
1
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 

 

K
e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
) 

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
to
 e
n
te
r 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t(
S
L
A
) 
w
it
h
 

L
C
C
 S
o
u
th
 S
o
u
th
 E
a
s
t 

H
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

A
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
n
te
r 
in
to
 a
 

1
2
+
(6
) 
m
o
n
th
s
 S
L
A
 w
it
h
 

L
C
C
 S
o
u
th
 S
o
u
th
 E
a
s
t 

H
o
m
e
s
 S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
s
u
b
je
c
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
o
n
. 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

  

2
/7
/0
7
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 

L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  

W
a
iv
e
r 
R
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

A
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 D
e
le
g
a
te
d
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 P
a
n
e
l 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

 

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
to
 e
n
te
r 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t(
S
L
A
) 
w
it
h
 

L
C
C
 W

e
s
t 
N
o
rt
h
 W

e
s
t 

H
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

A
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
n
te
r 
in
to
 a
 

1
2
 +
 (
6
) 
m
o
n
th
s
 S
L
A
 w
it
h
 

L
C
C
 W

e
s
t 
N
o
rt
h
 W

e
s
t 

H
o
m
e
s
 S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
s
u
b
je
c
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
o
n
. 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

  

2
/7
/0
7
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 

L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  

W
a
iv
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

A
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 D
e
le
g
a
te
d
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 P
a
n
e
l 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

 

Page 61



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
) 

 

Page 62



  N
O

T
E

S
 

 K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
  
a
re
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
: 

•
 

w
h
ic
h
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 i
n
c
u
rr
in
g
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
r 
m
a
k
in
g
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
v
e
r 
£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
, 
o
r 

•
 

a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 l
iv
in
g
 o
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 a
n
 a
re
a
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
in
g
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 P
o
rt

fo
li
o
s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
M
a
rk
 H
a
rr
is
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
A
n
d
re
w
 C
a
rt
e
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
S
te
v
e
 S
m
it
h
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
o
h
n
 L
e
s
lie
 C
a
rt
e
r 

L
e
is
u
re
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
o
h
n
 P
ro
c
te
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 B
re
tt
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
a
rk
e
r 

A
d
u
lt
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
P
e
te
r 
H
a
rr
a
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 L
a
b
o
u
r 
G
ro
u
p
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
K
e
it
h
 W

a
k
e
fi
e
ld
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 M
o
rl
e
y
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
o
b
e
rt
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

A
d
v
is
o
ry
 M

e
m
b
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
u
d
it
h
 B
la
k
e
 

   

Page 63



  
L
E

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

 
B

U
D

G
E

T
 A

N
D

 P
O

L
IC

Y
 F

R
A

M
E

W
O

R
K

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

 D
e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 D

a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 N
O

T
E

S
: 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
, 
in
 A
rt
ic
le
 4
, 
d
e
fi
n
e
s
 t
h
o
s
e
 p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m

a
k
e
 u
p
 t
h
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
re
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 F
o
rw
a
rd
 P
la
n
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
 

 F
u
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
( 
a
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
a
ll 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il)
 a
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 

Page 64


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting - 14th June 2007
	7 Minutes - Executive Board - 4th July 2007
	8 Minutes - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 4th June 2007
	9 Members' Questions
	10 Monitoring of Scrutiny Board Recommendations
	Appendix 1 - ASB
	Appendix 2 - Affordable Housing

	11 Inquiry into Regeneration in Beeston Hill and Holbeck - Formal Responses to Recommendations
	Appendix 1 - Formal Reponse

	12 Work Programme
	Appendix 1 - Work Programme
	Appendix 2 - Forward Plan


